
Planning & Zoning 
September 16, 2024

7:00 P.M.  
WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. WELCOME.

III. EXCUSED ABSENCES.

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. August 19, 2024 P&Z Meeting.

VI. ELECTION OF OFFICERS.

1. Chairperson.

2. Vice Chairperson.

VII. NEW BUSINESS.

1. Cornerstone Section 2, Phase 3 Final Plat. 

2. Eli's Ridge Phase 5 Final Plat. 

3. Southbrook Planned Unit Development (PUD) Rezoning.

4. Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat. 

VIII. REPORTS FROM STAFF.

IX. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS.

X. ADJOURN. 
SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the 
meeting.  (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 



Town of Winterville 
Planning & Zoning 
Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: September 16, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: P&Z Minutes. 

Action Requested: Review P&Z Minutes for Approval or Edits. 

Attachment: August 19, 2024 Draft Minutes.    

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 9/4/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☐ TC: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ TM: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ Final:

Supporting Documentation 
Attached are the Draft Planning and Zoning Board Minutes for August 19, 2024. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes if accurate. 



 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
MONDAY, AUGUST 19, 2024 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Planning and Zoning Board met on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall Assembly Room, 
with Chairman Gregory Monroe presiding. The following were present: 

 
Gregory Monroe, Chairman 

Douglas R. Kilian, Vice Chairman 
Anthony Bell, Member 

Domini Cunningham, Alternate Member 
Brandy Daniels, Member 

Darlene Gardner, Member 
James Godfrey Jones, Member (absent) 

Henry Hostetler, ETJ Member 
Morris Luton, Member (excused) 
Michael Weldin, Member (absent) 

Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 
Tristyn Daughtry, Economic Development Planner 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Monroe called the meeting to order. 
 
WELCOME: Chairman Monroe welcomed all Board members and the public to the meeting. 
 
EXCUSED ABSENCES: Chairman Monroe requested to excuse the following Board members excused 
from the meeting: Member Luton. 
 
Motion by Vice Chairman Kilian and second by Member Gardner to excuse Member Luton. 
Motion carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion by Vice Chairman Kilian to add the appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman to the 
agenda. 
 
Board and staff discussed the need to have time to think and study this item. 
 
Motion died for a lack of a second. 
 
Motion by Member Hostetler and second by Member Gardner to approve the Agenda as 
presented. Motion carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of the May 20, 2024 and June 17, 2024 meetings were presented 
for approval. 



Page 2 of 9

Motion by Member Gardner and second by Member Cunningham to approve the minutes for the
May 20, 2024 and June 17, 2024 meetings as presented. Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Mill Street Townes Preliminary Plat - Planning and Economic Development Director Penn gave the
following presentation:



 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

 
 

 
 



Page 4 of 9



 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 
 

 
 
Staff Analysis: 
• Mill Street Townes Obtained a Special Use Permit for up to 138 Single Family Attached 

Dwelling Units on March 22, 2022. 
• The proposed Preliminary Plat meets the requirement of the Town of Winterville for a 

Single Family Attached (townhome development). The Preliminary Plat has been reviewed 
and approved by the Winterville Technical Review Committee and thus the Town of 
Winterville Staff recommends approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat. 

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval, as proposal meets Winterville Ordinance and 
Standards as reviewed by the Winterville Technical Review Committee. Planning and Economic 
Development Director Penn ask for any questions. The project developer is available for any questions. 
 
Chairman Monroe asked with multiple buildings, could they have multiple owners. Planning and 
Economic Development Director Penn said yes, multiple owners could occur. Member Cunningham 
said are we looking aerial of the surrounding area. Vice Chairman Kilian what is a Type A buffer. 
Planning and Economic Development Director Penn explained the different buffer types and 



Page 7 of 9

vegetations required for each. Vice Chairman Kilian asked is there an earthen berm. Planning and
Economic Development Director Penn said a berm is located along southern portion and roads.

Member Daniels asked are there multiple owners of adjacent land. Planning and Economic
Development Director Penn said yes, and we have all been in contact with them. Kenneth Smith,
developer, said they are not rentals, there is the need for owner properties. Vice Chairman Kilian said
feels there needs to be privacy berm between development and house. Planning and Economic
Development Director Penn defined the berm requirements. Kenneth Smith said they will do what will
make adjacent landowner happy. Planning and Economic Development Director Penn defined Type A
buffer yard that requires a barrier within five years. Member Daniels asked the size of the homes.
Kenneth Smith said 1,500 – 1,800 square foot; 2 - 3-bedroom homes, within walking distance to
downtown, and HOA supported. Vice Chairman Kilian asked what is between 11 and Main and this
development. Planning and Economic Development Director Penn said it meets the code and setbacks.

Chairman Monroe ask for further questions. There being none, what is the pleasure of the Board?

Motion by Member Hostetler and second by Member Gardner to approve the Mill Street Townes
Preliminary Plat. Motion carried 6-1, Member Daniels opposed.

REPORTS FROM STAFF:

Chairman Monroe ask for reports from staff.

Planning and Economic Development Director Penn reported the following noted items. He
summarized the report below, introduced Tristyn Daughtry, Economic Development Planner, and
discussed the new PCC Welding Building starting construction. Member Hostetler asked what the
average rate for rent is. Planning and Economic Development Director Penn said we try to stay out of
numbers. Some developers have applied for permits for assisted units. Member Daniels asked are we
offering assistance. Planning and Economic Development Director Penn responded that we are getting
the word for out for potential applicants.



Page 8 of 9



 

Page 9 of 9 
 

COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
Chairman Monroe ask if there were any comments from members of the Board. No comments. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Chairman Monroe requested a motion to adjourn. 
 
Motion by Member Gardner and second by Vice Chairman Kilian to adjourn the meeting. Motion 
carried unanimously, 7-0. Meeting adjourned at 7:38 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 16th day of September 2024. 
 
 
 

  
Gregory Monroe, Chairman 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 



Town of Winterville 
Planning & Zoning 
Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Other Items 

Meeting Date: September 16, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Election of Officers. 

Action Requested: Election of Chair and Vice-Chair of the P&Z Board.  

Attachment: None 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 9/4/2024 

Supporting Documentation 

Election of Chair & Vice-Chair of Planning and Zoning Board (P&Z): 

Current Officers: 

• Chairman- Gregory Monroe.
• Vice Chairman- Douglas Kilian

Planning and Zoning Board Members: 

1. Anthony Bell
Term Expires: 06/30/2027

2. Brandy Daniels
Term Expires: 06/30/2025

3. Darlene Gardner
Term Expires: 06/30/2027

4. Douglas R. Kilian (Vice-Chairman)
Term Expires: 06/30/2027

5. Gregory Monroe (Chairman)
Term Expires: 06/30/2027

6. Michael Weldin
Term Expires: 06/30/2027

7. James Godfrey Jones
Term Expires: 06/30/2025

8. Morris Luton
Term Expires: 06/30/2025

9. Domini Cunningham (Alternate Member. )
Term Expires: 06/30/2025

ETJ Members (County Appointed) 
1. Henry Hostetler (ETJ member)

Term Expires: 06/30/2025

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Consider Chair and Vice-Chair Appointments. 



Town of Winterville 
Planning & Zoning 
Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: September 16, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Cornerstone Section 2, Phase 3 Final Plat.   

Action Requested: Provide a recommendation to Town Council. 

Attachment: Final Plat. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 9/4/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☐ TC: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ TM: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ Final:

Supporting Documentation 
Applicant: Stroud Engineering.  

Location: Cornerstone Subdivision off of Firetower Road.  

Parcel Numbers: 38827 

Site Data: 

• This Phase 3.3151 acres.
• This Phase contains 11 Lots.

Zoning District: R-6. 

Staff Analysis: 

The Proposed Cornerstone Section 2, Phase 3 Final Plat meets the standards and requirements of the Town of 
Winterville.  This Final Plat has received Technical Review Committee Approval for Planning and Zoning Board review. 
Staff recommends the approval of Cornderstone Section 2, Phase 3 Final Plat as its design meets all 
requirements of the Town of Winterville.   

****Notes: This Final Plat may go before the Planning and Zoning Board for recommendation to Town Council.  This 
Final Plat may not go before Town Council until all elements and requirements of this final plat have 
been finalized and approved by the Town of Winterville Staff.  

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval of Cornerstone Section 2, Phase 3 Final Plat. . 



P&Z Cleared
Need Final 
Approvals etc to 
present to Town
Council. 

stephen.penn
Received



Town of Winterville 
Planning & Zoning 
Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: September 16, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Eli's Ridge Phase 5 Final Plat.   

Action Requested: Provide a recommendation to Town Council. 

Attachment: Final Plat.  

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 9/4/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☐ TC: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ TM: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ Final:

Supporting Documentation 
Applicant: Stroud Engineering.  

Location: Eli's Ridge Subdivision off of Worthington Road. . 

Parcel Numbers: A portion of 84754 

Site Data: 

• This Phase 5.5089 acres.
• This Phase contains 14 Lots.

Zoning District: R-10. 

Staff Analysis: 

The Proposed Eli's Ridge Phase 5 Final Plat meets the standards and requirements of the Town of Winterville.  This Final 
Plat has received Technical Review Committee Approval for Planning and Zoning Board review.  Staff recommends the 
approval of Eli's Ridge Phase 5 Final Plat as its design meets all requirements of the Town of Winterville.   

****Notes: This Final Plat may go before the Planning and Zoning Board for recommendation to Town Council.  This 
Final Plat may not go before Town Council until all elements and requirements of this final plat have been 
finalized and approved by the Town of Winterville Staff.  

****Note: The "Clara Court" stub was required to allow the adjoining property owner access to their property.  The 
pavement will not be completed unless the adjoining property is ever developed.  The property is located within floodplain 
and floodway and will likely not be developed in the future.  

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval of Eli's Ridge Phase 5 Final Plat. . 



SD 9.6.24- P&Z Cleared
Not Council Yet. 

stephen.penn
Received



Town of Winterville 
Planning & Zoning 
Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: September 16, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Southbrook Planned Unit Development (PUD) Rezoning/Amendment.  . 

Action Requested: Provide a recommendation to Town Council. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application; Metes and Bounds Description; Existing PUD Development Standards (Ordinance 
Number 23-O-011; Proposed Amended PUD Document, Staff Report; Proposed Preliminary Plat With Highlighted 
Areas of Puestion; Certified Notice to Adjoining Property Owners.  

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 9/4/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☐ TC: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ TM: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ Final:

Supporting Documentation 
Southbrook Subdivision was designed as a Planned Unit Development (PUD). PUDs are Conditional Zoning Districts 
that allow flexibility in design due to environmental constraints present on sites.  The property in which Southbrook is 
proposed is a perfect candidate for such a development due to the significant amount of environmentally sensitive land 
that is located on the property.  The intent of a PUD is to allow the developer to cluster their development into smaller 
pockets in order to reach the density that would normally be present in this location while ensuring minimal impact to 
environmental features.   

Southbrook received an R-6 Conditional District and Multi-Family Conditional District PUD rezoning approval on 1.9.23.  
The Southbrook Planned Unit Development contains its own development standards to help protect environmentally 
sensitive areas.  Anything that is not included and approved within the Southbrook PUD Development standards are 
subject to normal Town of Winterville Standards.  

The applicant has submitted a revision to the Southbrook PUD Development Standards in hopes to: 

• Expand the location and area in which Single Family Attached Units are located. (But not the overall number
of single family attached units).

• Changes in Single Family Attached Homes- From  1,600 heated square feet to 1,400 heated square feet.
• Changes in Single Family Detached homes from: 1,800 heated square feet to 1,500 heated square feet for

single story homes and 1,600 heated square feet for two story homes.
• Changes in Block Length- from our current 1,200' maximum to 1,400' maximum.
• Changes in Block Definition- City Blocks are defined by streets; the applicant wishes to allow sidewalks and

pedestrian trails to be used to define an edge of a city block.
• Deviations and flexibility in Town Council and Staff review processes.

More information and details may be found on the attached staff report.  

Staff recommends denial of the proposed rezoning for reasons outlined in the Staff Report. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Denial of the proposed rezoning Amendment as it is not in alignment with Winterville Standards and 
Procedures.  







 

Legal Descrip�on For 
Chapel Hill Founda�on Real Estate Holdings LLC 

Winterville Township, Pit County 
North Carolina 

 

Commencing at a point, said point being an iron pipe found along the eastern right-of-way of Church 
Street Ext. (SR 1714) in Winterville Township, Pit County, North Carolina. Point further described as the 
northwestern corner of the Annie Mae E. Allen Life Estate property as recorded in Deed Book DC108, 
Page 1, Pit County Registry. Point also described as a western corner of the Chapel Hill Founda�on Real 
Estate Holdings Inc. property as recorded in Deed Book 3448 Page 378 and the POINT OF BEGINNING.  
Thence along the eastern right-of-way of Church Street Ext. N 13°49'16" E a distance of 839.61 feet to an 
iron pipe found. Thence with a curve turning to the right with an arc length of 34.22 feet, with a radius of 
970.00 feet, with a chord bearing of N 14°49'55" E, with a chord length of 34.22 feet to an iron pipe 
found. Thence S 76°40'42" E a distance of 221.56 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 13°21'42" E a 
distance of 199.94 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°41'35" E a distance of 48.55 feet to an iron 
pipe found. Thence S 76°43'28" E a distance of 79.97 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°41'04" E a 
distance of 80.06 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°43'38" E a distance of 80.00 feet to an iron pipe 
found. Thence S 76°38'17" E a distance of 79.88 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°42'13" E a 
distance of 95.07 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°53'54" E a distance of 233.88 feet to an iron 
pipe found. Thence S 76°11'58" E a distance of 80.03 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°18'57" E a 
distance of 79.91 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°44'16" E a distance of 81.00 feet to an iron pipe 
found. Thence S 76°02'02" E a distance of 48.73 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 77°35'50" E a 
distance of 31.28 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 76°36'08" E a distance of 338.06 feet to an iron 
pipe found. Thence N 00°31'39" E a distance of 182.63 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 00°29'08" E 
a distance of 330.30 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 00°38'02" E a distance of 65.26 feet to an 
concrete monument. Thence N 89°59'29" E a distance of 114.37 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 
89°58'14" E a distance of 203.88 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°58'34" E a distance of 28.92 
feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°56'11" E a distance of 114.38 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence 
S 89°59'31" E a distance of 173.14 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 89°54'48" E a distance of 87.40 
feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°58'10" E a distance of 172.53 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence 
S 89°56'54" E a distance of 590.76 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°50'17" E a distance of 80.27 
feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 89°50'37" E a distance of 79.81 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 
89°57'59" E a distance of 137.59 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 89°56'43" E a distance of 94.24 
feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°10'01" E a distance of 80.18 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 
23°59'09" E a distance of 140.25 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°08'47" E a distance of 80.05 
feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°05'04" E a distance of 79.83 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 
23°59'17" E a distance of 95.32 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°13'03" E a distance of 59.81 feet 
to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°15'41" E a distance of 95.06 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 
24°08'17" E a distance of 80.01 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 24°06'04" E a distance of 68.97 feet 
to an iron pipe found. Thence N 25°06'13" E a distance of 44.47 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 
02°31'42" E a distance of 102.94 feet to an iron pipe found. 



Thence N 02°35'22" E a distance of 79.97 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°40'37" E a distance of 
80.02 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°38'11" E a distance of 79.90 feet to an iron pipe found.  
Thence N 02°38'58" E a distance of 80.02 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°37'12" E a distance of 
80.03 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°36'39" E a distance of 65.77 feet to an iron pipe found. 
Thence N 02°37'37" E a distance of 80.53 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 02°34'45" E a distance of 
100.31 feet to an iron pipe found along the southern right-of-way of Laurie Ellie Road (SR 1713). Thence 
across the right-of-way of Laurie Ellis Road N 09°30'52" E a distance of 60.00 feet to a point. Thence 
down the northern right-of-way of Laurie Ellis Road S 80°29'08" E a distance of 530.03 feet to a point. 
Thence across the right-of-way of Laurie Ellis Road S 09°30'52" W a distance of 60.00 feet to an iron pipe 
found. Thence S 01°56'14" W a distance of 708.73 feet to an exis�ng axle. Thence S 88°58'00" E a 
distance of 152.87 feet to an exis�ng axle. Thence S 00°09'02" W a distance of 171.26 feet to an iron 
pipe found. Thence S 00°13'41" W a distance of 1632.07 feet to an exis�ng axle. Thence N 86°17'28" W a 
distance of 215.90 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 13°39'00" W a distance of 214.53 feet to an iron 
pipe found. Thence S 21°51'13" W a distance of 355.50 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence  
N 78°17'01" W a distance of 371.81 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 45°24'01" W a distance of 
198.70 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence S 88°23'03" W a distance of 244.59 feet to an iron pipe found. 
Thence S 26°55'31" W a distance of 449.06 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 42°39'50" E a distance of 
75.00 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence S 19°34'18" E a distance of 74.12 feet to an iron pipe found. 
Thence S 84°01'21" W a distance of 665.25 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence S 00°28'33" W a distance of 
65.15 feet to a concrete monument. Thence S 00°19'26" W a distance of 1555.90 feet to an iron pipe 
found. Thence N 74°31'09" W a distance of 65.83 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 73°35'21" W a 
distance of 101.37 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 74°41'15" W a distance of 63.53 feet to an iron 
pipe found. Thence N 73°41'32" W a distance of 147.25 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 77°17'38" 
W a distance of 212.23 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 72°38'39" W a distance of 99.96 feet to an 
iron pipe found. Thence N 73°01'28" W a distance of 81.53 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence  
N 79°42'20" W a distance of 141.75 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 86°31'20" W a distance of 
131.43 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 32°10'26" W a distance of 1303.35 feet to concrete 
monument. Thence S 85°20'28" W a distance of 501.60 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence N 61°11'51" W a 
distance of 51.66 feet to an iron pipe set. Thence N 33°16'57" E a distance of 74.40 feet to an iron pipe 
found. Thence N 33°16'57" E a distance of 101.95 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 33°32'17" E a 
distance of 202.81 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 35°14'59" E a distance of 173.09 feet to an iron 
pipe set. Thence N 62°59'38" W a distance of 20.21 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 62°59'38" W a 
distance of 97.24 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 63°12'47" W a distance of 176.47 feet to an iron 
pipe found. Thence N 63°11'09" W a distance of 108.02 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence  
N 63°18'50" W a distance of 31.73 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 06°25'46" E a distance of 72.99 
feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 34°39'10" W a distance of 299.54 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence 
N 58°37'40" W a distance of 71.17 feet to an iron pipe found. Thence N 77°23'18" W a distance of 192.29 
feet to an iron pipe found and the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 246.177 acres (10723486 
square feet). 



Existing/ Current PUD and REZONING Ordinance for Southbrook

stephen.penn
Highlight



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



Town of Winterville 

Plan Unit Development 

For 

Southbrook
Applicant: 

Southbrooknc, LLC 

4350 Lassiter at North Hills Ave, Ste 256 

Raleigh, NC 27609 

Original Approval: 1/9/23 

Revision: 8/26/24 

Amended/Proposed Ordinance Amendment Text for P&Z & 
Town Council Review- 2024 Submission. 

stephen.penn
Highlight



1 
 

 

Project Development Team: 
 
Project Manager – Southbrooknc, LLC 
4350 Lassiter at North Hills Ave, Ste 256 Raleigh, NC 27609 
Contact: Scott Moore 
scott@thecoleygroup.com 

mailto:scott@thecoleygroup.com
stephen.penn
Stamp



 

2 
 

1. Definitions and Construction Terms 
 
Conceptual Plan.  The Conceptual Plan is a plan that generally identifies the land use 
patterns, conceptual design, and density for the development of the Southbrook Property 
and is attached as Appendix 1.  The Conceptual Plan serves as the zoning map for the 
development, is a condition of this planned density residential rezoning application, and, along 
with this document, serves to form the Development Plan for the proposed development.   

Developer.  The Developer of this project is Southbrooknc, LLC and/or assigns. 
 
Development Plan.  This rezoning application with the Conceptual Plan constitutes 
the Development Plan.  
 
Home Owners Association (HOA).  The HOA is a non-profit corporation for the purposes, 
among other things, of owning and managing the privately owned common areas and 
providing governance of the development as a homeowner’s association.   

Open Space.  “Open space” refers to areas of the development that allow for light, air, 
wildlife habitat, stormwater control, and scenic and recreation use.  Also included are areas 
designed to enhance the privacy or general appearance of the development.  Open space 
shall be owned and maintained by the HOA.      
 
Planned Unit Development (PUD).  This zoning designation is established to allow for 
design flexibility of development and is intended to encourage efficient use of the land and 
public services and to promote high quality design that will provide a variety of dwelling types 
as well as support services and open space for the residents of the development.  These 
regulations are intended to permit integration with adjacent residential uses and to promote 
compatibility with existing and emerging patterns of development.   
 
Town.  “Town” refers to the Town of Winterville.  
 
Zoning Ordinance.  The Zoning Ordinance for the Town of Winterville.  Any term not defined 
in this document will be as defined in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



3 

2. Development Plan

The plan will meet the Town’s Zoning Ordinance (latest edition) and all standards and policies 
(latest edition) except as noted otherwise.  

The maximum number of units proposed is 612 residential homes (with a maximum of 154 
Single Family Attached Homes) on the 245-acre subject property. The Conceptual Subdivision 
Layout shows the general layout of the proposed development with anticipated use areas and 
how they mingle throughout the development, connected by open spaces and sidewalks along 
public roads. The Development Plan also shows the general area of Stormwater Control 
Devices and Recreational Areas. As the plan is further developed, the actual locations of the 
proposed stormwater devices, residential product types and locations may vary to conform to 
the Construction Plans. 

The proposed rezoning request is beneficial to the Town because it provides a greater tax 
base. By concentrating more homes on a smaller footprint, we are maximizing the protection 
of trees and environmentally sensitive areas which is useful to the future residents by 
concentrating excess open space, that would normally be included in each lot, into larger 
preservation areas within the subdivision. This gives the new home buyer a smaller lot with 
less maintenance and also provides a larger area for recreation for all to enjoy. This also 
results in less long-term infrastructure maintenance for the Town for the same tax base 
revenue. 

Assuming the Town Council finds this rezoning application favorable, the Construction 
Drawings will provide a much higher level of technical data and detail appropriate for review 
by the Town, NCDOT, and other agencies having jurisdiction. 

The guidelines and zoning regulations for the development and the agreed upon conditions 
are included in the Development Plan.  To account for both technological innovations and 
unforeseen marketplace changes, this Development Plan is intended to incorporate flexibility 
concerning design and development.  

Should the Developer want to make changes to the Development Plan, (Appendix 1 – Zoning 
Map) the Planning Director can approve specific minor revisions or changes that represent 
less intensive uses. An example of one such modification is changing the type of residential 
use that results in a decrease in density. The approval of the Planning Director is an 
administrative approval only and all other changes to this Development Plan will constitute a 
rezoning and require City Council approval. 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

4 
 

3.  Compliance with Town of Winterville’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
 
The site referenced in this Development Plan is located on both the south side of Laurie Ellis 
Road and east of Church Street in Winterville. The proposed property contains approximately 
245 acres and includes the areas associated with the following Parcel Identification Numbers: 
15006, 11636,11638, 82096, 82094. 
 
The site falls under the Town of Winterville’s jurisdiction for planning and land use control. 
According to Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan from 2019, the site is shown as medium 
to high on the Residential Land Use Suitability Map as part of the community assessment. 
Our proposal shall meet the guidelines of the Healthy Neighborhoods and Environment 
section by “Developing in a way that alleviates impacts to the natural environment including, 
flood sensitive areas, trees and valuable natural resources”.  We are also proposing to adhere 
to the “Connectivity and Mobility section by creating safe connections between 
neighborhoods, destinations and services.  We will utilize existing public street connections 
with adjacent communities and also provide stub connections to adjacent lands for future 
connectivity.  Our plan shall adhere to the Future Land Use Map as we will provide a 
“Suburban Residential” community with 2.5 units per acre with smaller lot sizes that will meet 
standards for open space and amenities.   
 
4.  Common Areas 
 
Common Areas may include, but are not limited to, open spaces and shared amenities like 
butterfly gardens, dog parks, playgrounds, pool, structures, walking trails, etc. Every lot owner 
will have the right of ingress and egress, use, and enjoyment in and to the Common Areas, 
subject to the rules and regulations of the HOA, which rights are appurtenant to and pass 
with title to every lot. 
 
5.  Residential Restrictions 
 
The agents and employees of the Developer and the HOA will have the right to enter onto any 
lots in the development to control certain actions or activities on such lots. These actions 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
A. On and off-street parking on common areas and lots, 
B. Erection of signage, 
C. Solicitation by property owners and non-property owners, 
D. Access by non-property owners, 
E. Construction or placement of temporary structures, 
F. Construction of accessory buildings, 
G. Maintenance of lots (both pre- and post-construction), and 
H. Erection of decorative poles for street or non-regulatory signs within public rights of way if 

Town approval is granted for the same. These are the responsibility of the HOA to install, 
repair, and replace at no cost to the Town. 

 
 
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

5 
 

More specific guidelines concerning these actions/activities may be adopted by the Developer 
and/or the HOA. Subsequently, the Developer and/or the HOA will have the right to enforce 
these actions/activities in accordance with Town rules, regulations, and ordinances. 
 
6.  Dimensional Standards 
 
For each subdivided lot, the dimensions of the lot, yard, and setback will be determined by the 
Developer as stated in Article VII. Table of Area, Yard, Height Requirements; Section 7.1 
Dimensional Requirements as shown in Appendix 2. 
 
7.  Regulation of Open Space 
 
The regulation of Open Space within the development will be done by the Developer and 
the HOA. As such, the Developer and/or the HOA may implement policies regarding 
towing, parking, access, signage, and trespassing within the development. 
 
8.  Driveways/Roadway Access and Sidewalks  
 
Concrete will be used to surface all residential driveways.  Utility drives, maintenance areas, 
drives to temporary structures, access drives to public utility services, and other similar drives 
can use alternative surface options as approved by the Town’s Public Works and Fire 
departments. Sidewalks in the development will be installed at as per the approved street 
cross sections generally 5’ wide and on one side of the street with the exception of cul-de-
sacs. 
  
9.  Building & Aesthetics for Single Family Detached Homes 
 
Town ordinances will be met during construction of the development. The HOA will retain 
authority over the aesthetic aspects of construction such as architectural style elements, 
appearance, and color through its architectural control mechanisms. All single-family homes 
will have the following: 
 
1. A minimum of 1600 heated square feet for Two-Story Homes and 1500 heated square 

feet for One-Story Homes. 
2. Dimensional architectural roof shingle. 
3. 6” min. roof overhang on all sides. 
4. All homes will include a 2-car garage. 
5. The same elevation is not allowed to be built (1) side by side, (2) across the street, or (3) 

diagonally from one another.      
6. Garage doors will be decorative and/or contain windows. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

6 
 

10.  Building & Aesthetics for Single Family Attached Homes 
 
The HOA will retain authority over the aesthetic aspects of construction such as architectural 
style elements, appearance, and color through its architectural control mechanisms. All single 
family attached homes will have the following: 
 

1. All homes will have a minimum of 1400 heated square feet. 
2. Dimensional architectural roof shingle. 
3. 6” min. roof overhang on all sides. 

 
 11.  Signs (Non-Regulatory) 

Entrance signage must be on a parcel that is owned by the HOA or within a signage 
easement on an owner’s property.   

The Developer and the HOA will control all applications, permitting, erection and maintenance 
of all non-regulatory signs within the development.  The Town shall permit and inspect all 
signs that relate to all local, state, and federal building codes.   

 
For all signs (including those that are temporary in nature) erected in public rights-of-way or 
in view of publicly maintained access, the Developer and the HOA will abide by all sign 
regulations and limitations as set in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
12. District Regulations 
 
The Developer and the HOA will encourage efficient use of the land and public services and 
promote high quality design that provides a variety of dwelling types along with adequate 
support services and open space for the residents of the development.  The district 
regulations are intended to allow for innovative development that is integrated with 
proposed adjacent uses and compatible with existing patterns of development.   
 
13. Developer and HOA Requirements 

The Developer and the HOA will meet the following requirements:   
 

A. The Developer and the HOA agree to be responsible for the maintenance and perpetual 
existence of common areas.   

B. When individual lots that are not a part of an approved and platted subdivision are to be 
sold, a new subdivision construction and final plat shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Town and recorded in Pitt County Register of Deeds prior to the sale of lots and 
granting of any building permit.   

C. The Developer or the HOA must authorize the subdivision or recombination of property 
prior to the required approval by Town staff.   

D. No building permit for any structure within the development shall be issued until all 
required improvements are completed or bonded in accordance with the approved 
construction plans and conditionally accepted by the Public Works Department.     

E. The maximum allowable density shall not exceed 2.5 units per gross acre based on the 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

7 
 

total acres in the development.   
F. Land additions to the development may be made in increments of any size and will be 

subject to this Development Plan.   
G. A variety of dwelling unit styles will be proposed for the development and support uses 

with adherence to the minimum residential lot areas per Article VII. Table of Area, Yard, 
Height Requirements; Section 7.1 Dimensional Requirements as shown in Appendix 2. 

H. Setback from public rights-of-way: Any building that is erected, reconstructed, or moved 
shall be setback a minimum of 20 feet (required by code) from the right-of-way line.    

I. Height Requirements.  Maximum building height shall not exceed the heights as stated on 
the Article VII. Table of Area, Yard, Height Requirements; Section 7.1 Dimensional 
Requirements. 

J. Open Space Requirement. The proposed overall open space for the project will be no less 
than 20% of the total project area. The open space will be controlled by the HOA and will 
be generally located as shown on the Conceptual Subdivision Layout. Within the open 
space, there will be play areas, stormwater control devices, wooded areas, and grass.   

 
14. Rights-of-Way Width, Block Lengths, Street Design, and Improvements 
Requirements 

Streets shall be designed in accordance with Section 4 of the Town’s Standards Specifications 
and Details with the following exception: Typical Street cross sections shall follow the detail 
shown in Appendix 3. 

Given the number of onsite constraints (Piedmont Natural Gas Line, the Neuse River Buffer, 
Wetlands, etc.) Block Lengths may exceed ordinance requirements but shall not surpass 
1,400 feet in Length for standard streets.  The use of mid-block pedestrian accesses (Min. 30’ 
Open Space Areas along the street right of ways with sidewalks connecting 2 or more public 
streets) can be utilized to establish Blocks.  All blocks and block lengths shall be established 
on the Approved Preliminary Plat. 

The Town may allow the construction of private streets and/or parking areas within future 
phases of the community as appropriate for the type of use, structure and development 
created.  The Developer shall designate any such private streets and/or parking areas as 
Common Open Space to be owned and maintained by the HOA, with full easement rights of 
access, ingress and egress, thus granted to all owners of lots within the development.   
Roadway improvements (turn lanes) on Laurie Ellis Road or Church Street may be required 
in conjunction with subdivision street access and would be the responsibility of the Developer. 
 
15. Subdivision Improvements 
 
The Developer will meet the following requirements:   
 
A. Curbs and Gutters. Concrete curbs and gutters shall be installed on all public streets within 

the development to meet all requirements of the Town of Winterville.  
B. Electric Utility Lines.   All public electric utility lines will be installed in accordance with the 

Town’s policy for electric service. Electric lines will be installed underground in easements 
or rights-of-way outside of curb lines where practical.   
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

8 
 

 
C. Natural Gas Utilities.  All public natural gas utility lines within the development will be 

installed in accordance with the Town’s policy for Natural Gas Service. Natural gas service 
lines shall be installed underground in easements or rights-of-way outside of curb lines 
where practical.     

D. Special Exceptions for Design Waivers.    If at any time before or during the 
construction of the required improvements, it is demonstrated to the satisfaction of 
the Public Works Department that unforeseen conditions make it necessary to modify 
the location or design of such required improvements as were approved in the 
Development Plan, the Public Works Department may authorize such modifications, 
provided these modifications are within the spirit and intent of the Town Council 
approval and do not substantially alter the function of any improvements required by the 
conceptual master plan. 

E. Solid Waste Improvements.  All residential lots will utilize roll out carts. No specific solid 
waste improvements are anticipated. 

F. Street Trees. The developer desires to provide a streetscape that contains street trees 
along the public street right of ways within a designated 7’ planting strip.  Street trees 
measuring 8’ in height and 1.5” in caliper will be provided along the public street rights-of-
way at a rate of one per 40’ while accommodating driveways. These trees shall adhere to 
the Town’s approved list of street trees.  The HOA and/or homeowner will be completely 
responsible for the health and well-being of the trees.  Maintenance of these trees will be 
specified within the HOA Community Regulations.   

G. Storm Drainage. All stormwater infrastructure shall be designed and constructed to meet 
all requirements of the Town of Winterville. 

H. Erosion Control. All erosion control measures shall be designed and constructed to meet 
all requirements of the Town of Winterville. 

 
 
 
16. Approval Processes 
 
Rezoning & Preliminary Plat Approval and Revision Process shall adhere to the following: 
   
A. The Developer will submit a PUD & Rezoning Plan which indicates the design and 

development pattern for the community. The PUD & Rezoning Plan will be reviewed by 
the Planning Board, and voted on by the Town Council.  Once approved, these two 
documents will constitute the official master plan for the development.     

B. The Planning Director and the Public Works Director shall have the authority to approve 
minor deviations to the PUD and Rezoning Plan provided said deviations remain consistent 
with the spirit and intent of the approvals.   

C. Major deviations and changes to the PUD and Rezoning Plan will require City Council 
approval.   Changes resulting in less intensive density, minor open space shifts, or minor 
road revisions shall not be considered major deviations.    

D. After approval of the PUD & Rezoning plan, The Developer will submit a Preliminary Plat 
which will indicate the lot layout within the approved development pattern for the 
community. The Preliminary Plat will be reviewed by the Planning Board, and voted on 
by the Town Council.   

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

9 
 

Construction Drawing Approval and Revision Processes: 
 
A. Upon approval of the Preliminary Plat, the developer will engage the town and all 

applicable review agents for Construction Drawing approvals (including but not limited to 
all planning, engineering and Town/NCDOT reviews).   
 

B. To allow for design flexibility of development, the following deviations and/or changes can 
be made at the Construction Drawing Review (without further revision to the Rezoning & 
PUD or Preliminary Plat): 
• The Developer can establish and/or modify: 

o Lot width revisions for all Single Family Detached Lots provided that the lot widths 
adhere to Appendix 2 - Dimensional Standards Chart and that the overall density 
will not exceed the 612 Lots (458 Single Family Detached Lots).  

• The Planning Director and the Public Works Director shall have the authority to 
administratively approve: 
o The addition or modification of open space areas provided that the revisions do not 

deduct from the required open space calculations as shown on the Approved 
Preliminary Plat.   

o All other minor deviations to the Construction Drawings provided said deviations 
remain consistent with the spirit and intent of the approved PUD & Rezoning Plan 
and Preliminary Plat.  

• All other deviations not administratively reviewed/approved or specifically stated above 
will be reviewed by the Planning Board, and voted on by the Town Council.   

 
C. Upon receipt of Construction Drawing approvals, the Developer may schedule all pre-

construction meetings and then begin construction on the required improvements.  The 
Town and all applicable review agents will issue approval letters acknowledging that all 
required permits have been issued. 

 
 
Final Plat Approval Process:   
 

A. Upon completion and approval of the required improvements by the State and/or 
Public Works Department, the developer will submit a Final Plat to the Town and 
applicable review agents for approval.  The Final Plat will conform to the Town’s 
Subdivision Ordinance and approved Construction Drawings. 

B. Once the Final Plat is approved, it will be recorded in the Pitt County Register of Deeds.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



10 

Building Permit & Certificate of Occupancy Issuance:  

A. No building permit will be issued to any owner/builder in the Development until the
section in which the lot is located has been final platted and meets all the
requirements of the approved construction drawings, including the acceptable
construction of the Town’s roadways.

B. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be issued until all the required provisions of the
Construction Drawings, and applicable local, state and federal regulations are met,
except that, provided all other improvements have been completed or bonded and
approved by the Town.  All bonded improvements shall be completed as approved
by the Public Works Department.

17. Project Phasing and Future Property Annexation:

A project of this size requires phased construction. The entrance location(s) and utilities will 
determine the direction of phasing for this project and all future phases.  The Town and 
Developer recognize that adjacent properties can be included and annexed within this PUD 
by Southbrooknc, LLC or related entities. The PUD as shown contains more than the allowable 
open space per the ordinance.  The developer reserves the right to annex future properties 
with the ability to utilize and apply this open space to those properties.  This project and any 
future annexed properties will altogether have no less than 25% open space.   

Notes:   
Appendix 1 Zoning Map  
Appendix 2 Dimensional Standards Chart 
Appendix 3 Street Cross Sections 

Appendix 1 – Zoning Map 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

11 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

12 
 

 
Appendix 2 - Dimensional Standards Chart 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

13 
 

 
Appendix 3 - Street Cross Section 

 

 
 

stephen.penn
Stamp



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Southbrooknc, LLC c/o Scott Moore 
HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 
REQUEST Conditional District – R-6 PUD / MR PUD Amendment  

*An amendment to Their existing Zoning District/ PUD 
Requirements.  

CONDITIONS Planned Unit Development – Unified Development Plan 
LOCATION Church Street Ext. / Laurie Ellis Road 
PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 15006, 11636, 11638, 82096, 82094 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION P&Z Meeting: 

Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on September 3, 2024. Notification was posted on site on 
September 3, 2024. 78 property owners were mailed notification.    

TRACT SIZE 245 +/- acres 
TOPOGRAPHY Flat 
VEGETATION Agricultural/Wooded 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Vacant/ Wooded 
 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 
N R-12.5, R-10 Single Family Residential  

 W R-10, GB Agricultural, Commercial 
E AR  Agricultural, Wooded 
S R-15, R-10, AR  Single Family Residential, 

Agricultural  

ZONING DISTRICT Proposed Amendments 

Amendment Summary EXISTING REQUESTED 
Amendment of Single Family 
Attached Zoning Location 

The current rezoning map 
shows Single Family Attached 
Zoned area near the Church 
Street Extension Entrance. 

The applicant is proposing to 
expand the single family 
attached zoning area (although 
the amount of single family 
attached units will not increase. 



2 
Staff Report 

(**Note- the current 
Southbrook PUD Development 
Plan states that a modification 
in residential type to a more 
dense product would require a 
rezoning and require Council 
Approval.  

MINIMUM HOME SIZE- SINGLE 
FAMILY DETACHED HOMES 

Two-Story: 1,800 heated square 
feet 
One-Story: 1,800 heated square 
feet 

Two-Story: 1,600 heated square 
feet 
One-Story: 1,500 heated square 
feet 

MINIMUM HOME SIZE- SINGLE 
FAMILY ATTACHED HOMES 

1,600 heated square feet 1,400 heated square feet 

MAXIMUM BLOCK LENGTHS 
Minimum of 400' and maximum 
of 1,200 foot (Ordinance 
requirement) 

1,400 foot Maximum. 

BLOCK DEFINITION Blocks are defined as an area of 
land surrounded by streets.   

The use of mid-block pedestrian 
accesses/sidewalks to create a 
block rather than an entire 
street.  This would include Min. 
30’ Open Space Areas along the 
street right of ways with 
sidewalks connecting 2 or more 
public streets) can be utilized to 
establish Blocks.   

Deviations from Rezoning/PUD 
Document and Preliminary Plat. 

Construction Drawings should 
greatly resemble the 
Preliminary Plat that is 
approved by Town Council.  All 
Preliminary Plats will have some 
very small changes that do not 
change the product, such as:  

* Small size changes in lots. (but
not to change the lot count)

* Small shifts in infrastructure
(but not to change design and
layout)

*etc.

A. To allow for design
flexibility of development,
the following deviations
and/or changes can be
made at the Construction
Drawing Review (without
further revision to the
Rezoning & PUD or
Preliminary Plat):

• The Developer can establish
and/or modify:

o Lot width revisions for
all Single Family
Detached Lots provided
that the lot widths
adhere to Appendix 2 -



 

3 
Staff Report 

Changes other than very small 
changes require Council 
Approval.  
 
Additionally, Recreation Space 
is reviewed by Town Council for 
ordinance compliance.  

Dimensional Standards 
Chart and that the 
overall density will not 
exceed the 612 Lots 
(458 Single Family 
Detached Lots).  
 

• The Planning Director and 
the Public Works Director 
shall have the authority to 
administratively approve: 

o The addition or 
modification of 
open space areas 
provided that the 
revisions do not 
deduct from the 
required open 
space calculations 
as shown on the 
Approved 
Preliminary Plat.   
 

o All other minor 
deviations to the 
Construction 
Drawings provided 
said deviations 
remain consistent 
with the spirit and 
intent of the 
approved PUD & 
Rezoning Plan and 
Preliminary Plat.  

 
• All other deviations not 

administratively 
reviewed/approved or 
specifically stated above will 
be reviewed by the Planning 
Board, and voted on by the 
Town Council.    

 



 

4 
Staff Report 

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 
ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS Potential Wetlands & Other Environmentally 

sensitive sites.  
FLOODPLAIN N/A 
STREAMS Southeast Drainage Lateral SC-35A, Tributary of 

off Swift Creek 
OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 

stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision Plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 
Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.
  

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 
Requirements). 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Laurie Ellis Road – NCDOT Road & Minor 
Thoroughfare.  
Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 
The Phase 1 Preliminary Plat showed access from 
Laurie Ellis Road, Church Street Extension, 
Cassena Drive (from Eli's Ridge); and Sparrow Ln. 
(from Mellon Downs).   

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Laurie Ellis Rd– 2,800 
Church Street Ext - 200 (Measured closer to 
Reedy Branch Intersection). 

TRIP GENERATION N/A.  
Level Of Service (Transportation Analysis)  
Current= 2016 Study; Future= 2045 Projection.  
 
* LOS is rated from A-F: A is the best, F the worst. 
  

Laurie Ellis Road- 
o Current LOS A (Extremely Low A). 
o Future LOS A (Extremely Low A).  



 

5 
Staff Report 

* Roadway Improvement and street design is 
based upon achieving a minimum of LOS D on 
existing facilities and LOS C on new facilities. 

 
Church Street Extension is not analyzed by the 
study.  

SIDEWALKS Required. 
TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD if required by NCDOT.  
STREET CONNECTIVITY Development must provide interconnectivity 

within the development and to land on the edge 
of the boundary.   

OTHER N/A 
 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed PUD zoning districts would allow flexibility in the development of the site since 
the site contains such large areas of environmental concern.  The PUD design will allow this 
site to become developed at a similar (net) density as another residential development 
within the Suburban Residential Character area.  The residential is clustered throughout the 
development in order to avoid environmentally sensitive features.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Suburban Residential character 
area. The requested PUD zoning districts are consistent with this character area as 
defined by the future land use designation and will be within the density requirements 
(proposed 2.5 units per acre – Suburban Residential allows 1-3 units per acre.) 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character:   
1. Larger lot, single family detached residential.  Generally around 3 dwelling units per 

acre, with smaller lots occasionally if minimum standards for open space and amenities 
are exceeded.   
 

(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   
 

Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when 
considering land use decisions. 
• Identified as Suburban Residential Character Area. 

 
Strategy 1.3:  Encourage a logical progression of development and 
extension of utilities and discourage leap-frog development. 
• The proposed development is located adjacent to existing subdivisions 



6 
Staff Report 

and would not be considered a leap-frog development. 

Policy 5:  Maintain and improve neighborhood character:   

Strategy 5.2:  Encourage open space and amenities in new development. 
• The proposed development would provide ample open space and

community amenities.

(Economic Development) Policy 3:  Reinforce the Town’s identity as a 
family-friendly community. 

Strategy 3.1:  Support rezonings to residential used in the Suburban 
Residential areas identified on the Future Land Use Map. 
• Property identified as Suburban Residential Character Area.

(Parks & Natural Resources) Policy 6:  Encourage quality open space. 

Conservation subdivision design that includes open space and 
amenities should be encouraged in Suburban Residential areas. 
• The requested PUD design does just that, it will be a Conservation

Subdivision Design that will focus on preserving the areas of
environmental concern in permanent open space and provide quality
open space areas and amenities within the community.

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Staff Analysis 
The 245.43-acre property is currently vacant.  The property North of the request is zoned R-
12.5 and is a single-family residential subdivision consisting of 62 lots (Holly Grove); R-10 
single-family residential subdivision consisting of 97 lots (Laurie Meadows); r-12.5 single-
family residential subdivision consisting of 86 lots (Mellon Downs).   West (across Church 



 

7 
Staff Report 

Street Ext) of the request is zoned R-10 and GB with existing commercial uses.   South of the 
request is zoned R-15, R-10 and AR and consist of a single-family residential subdivision 
consisting of 33 existing lots and 49 additional lots approved (Brookstone).  East of the 
property is zoned AR and is partially wooded/agricultural. 
 
Staff Analysist REQUESTED 

CHANGE 
Staff 
Recommendation 

Represented 
On Map 

Amendment of 
Single Family 
Attached Zoning 
Location 

The applicant is 
proposing to expand 
the single family 
attached zoning area 
(although the amount 
of single family 
attached units will not 
increase. 
 
(**Note- the current 
Southbrook PUD 
Development Plan 
states that a 
modification in 
residential type to a 
more dense product 
would require a 
rezoning and require 
Council Approval. 

 
Staff will defer to P&Z 
and Town Council on 
this proposed change 
doesn't present 
ordinance or design 
conflicts.   

Represented 
on attached 
map with 
yellow 
highlighter.  

 
MINIMUM HOME 
SIZE- SINGLE 
FAMILY 
DETACHED 
HOMES 

Two-Story: 1,600 
heated square feet 
One-Story: 1,500 
heated square feet 

 
Staff will defer to P&Z 
and Town Council on 
this proposal as it 
doesn't present 
ordinance or design 
conflicts.   
 

 

MINIMUM HOME 
SIZE- SINGLE 
FAMILY 
ATTACHED 
HOMES 

1,400 heated square 
feet 

Staff will defer to P&Z 
and Town Council on 
this proposal as it 
doesn't present 
ordinance or design 
conflicts.   
 

 

 
MAXIMUM 
BLOCK 
LENGTHS  

1,400 foot Staff recommends 
the denial of larger 
blocks.  
 
Winterville's 
Comprehensive Land 

Area of 
question is 
represented 
on attached 
map in yellow 
highlighter.  



 

8 
Staff Report 

Use Plan Suggests 
that block lengths 
should not exceed 
800' in suburban 
residential areas. The 
Future Land Use 
Plan further 
recommends 250' to 
500' blocks as 
"Excellent or Good" 
and that blocks over 
800' is poor for 
walkability and 
connectivity. More 
information on Street 
Connectivity 
recommendations 
can be found on the 
Infrastructure and 
Mobility 
implementation within 
Section 5, Policy 2.  
 
Smaller block lengths 
can help contribute to 
slower speeds and 
traffic calming; 
increased 
accessibility and 
interconnectivity; 
reduced travel 
distances; more 
welcoming walking 
and multi-modal 
transportation; can 
promote safety and 
neighborhood 
interaction. 
 
The location in which 
the applicant wishes 
to have a larger block 
is not affected by 
environmentally 
sensitive areas.  A 
PUD is intended to 
provide flexibility in 



 

9 
Staff Report 

design to account for 
environmentally 
sensitive land.  Since 
this is not the issue in 
this location, Staff 
believes that 
Southbrook should 
be held to the same 
standard as all other 
subdivisions in 
Winterville.  Larger 
block lengths are 
generally desired by 
a developer to limit   

BLOCK 
DEFINITION  

The use of mid-block 
pedestrian 
accesses/sidewalks to 
create a block rather 
than an entire street.  
This would include Min. 
30’ Open Space Areas 
along the street right of 
ways with sidewalks 
connecting 2 or more 
public streets) can be 
utilized to establish 
Blocks.   

Staff recommends 
the denial of the 
amended block 
definition.  
 
The use of mid-block 
pedestrian 
accesses/sidewalks 
to create a block 
rather than an entire 
street.  This would 
include Min. 30’ Open 
Space Areas along 
the street right of 
ways with sidewalks 
connecting 2 or more 
public streets) can be 
utilized to establish 
Blocks.   

This area is 
represented 
by yellow 
highlighter 
and is in the 
middle of the 
block that 
exceeds our 
maximum 
block length, 
as discussed 
above.  

Deviations from 
Rezoning/PUD 
Document and 
Preliminary Plat.   

• To allow for design 
flexibility of 
development, the 
following deviations 
and/or changes can 
be made at the 
Construction 
Drawing Review 
(without further 
revision to the 
Rezoning & PUD or 
Preliminary Plat): 

 
• The Developer can 

Staff recommends 
the denial of the 
proposed 
process/procedural 
changes.  
 
A Primary Plat, 
reviewed and 
approved by P&Z and 
Town Council should 
act as their 
development plan 
moving forward.  
 

 



10 
Staff Report 

establish and/or 
modify: 
o Lot width

revisions for all
Single Family
Detached Lots
provided that the
lot widths adhere
to Appendix 2 -
Dimensional
Standards Chart
and that the
overall density
will not exceed
the 612 Lots (458
Single Family
Detached Lots).

• The Planning
Director and the
Public Works
Director shall have
the authority to
administratively
approve:

o The addition
or
modification
of open
space areas
provided that
the revisions
do not deduct
from the
required open
space
calculations
as shown on
the Approved
Preliminary
Plat.

o All other
minor
deviations to
the
Construction

With any development, 
staff expects that 
some very small 
changes to lots and 
infrastructure from the 
Preliminary Plat to 
Construction Drawing.  

Staff concerns: 

• the ambiguity of
this request may
pressure town staff
into approving
elements of the
subdivision in
which the Planning
and Zoning Board
and Town Council
should review.

• The workload that
may result from
continuous
changes to their
Preliminary Plat
throughout the
lifetime of this
project.

• Though
Southbrook has a
PUD Zoning, the
nature of the
development
moving forward is
similar to other
subdivision in
Winterville.  We
believe that this
subdivision should
meet the
processes and
procedures of the
Town.

• Changing our



 

11 
Staff Report 

Drawings 
provided said 
deviations 
remain 
consistent 
with the spirit 
and intent of 
the approved 
PUD & 
Rezoning 
Plan and 
Preliminary 
Plat.  

 
All other deviations not 
administratively 
reviewed/approved or 
specifically stated 
above will be reviewed 
by the Planning Board, 
and voted on by the 
Town Council.   

procedures for one 
subdivision will 
increase staff's 
time and can 
contribute to 
"misses" in review 
and requirements. 
 

• Generally, Town 
Staff is reviewing 
Construction 
Drawings and 
Preliminary Plat 
submissions to 
ensure they follow 
the Preliminary 
Plat guidelines.  

•  
• Staff is unable to 

review reviewing 
changes based on 
Construction 
Drawings of a 
certain phase 
without reviewing 
the Preliminary 
Plat and 
understanding its 
comprehensive 
design.  Staff is 
concerned that this 
may create some 
unintended 
consequences that 
can be avoided by 
following the 
approved 
Preliminary Plat. 
 

 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends denial of the rezoning request as it doesn't meet the standards 
of the Town of Winterville, the Town's Comprehensive Plan, and presents staff 
concerns.  



8/23/2024
2nd Resub

This Preliminary Plat has not been 
approved by TRC,  P&Z or Town 
Council- This document is to help show 
the intent and desires of their PUD 
Changes. 

tristyn.daughtry
Received

stephen.penn
Highlight

stephen.penn
Highlight

stephen.penn
Highlight

stephen.penn
Highlight



Single Family Attached
Outside of Single Family 
Attached Zoning District

stephen.penn
Highlight

stephen.penn
Highlight



Block Exceeding Block Size 
Requirement & Midblock 
Walkway Proposal

stephen.penn
Highlight

stephen.penn
Highlight

stephen.penn
Highlight

stephen.penn
Highlight



















Town of Winterville 
Planning & Zoning 
Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: September 16, 2024 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat. 

Action Requested: Provide a recommendation to Town Council.  

Attachment: Preliminary Plat, Staff Report, Southbrook Development Plan/Ordinance.  

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 9/4/2024 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
☐ TC: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ TM: Click or tap to enter a date. ☐ Final:

Supporting Documentation 
Applicant: Southbrook NC, LLC (Scott Moore). 

Location: Between Church Street Ext.& Laurie Ellis Road. . 

Parcel Numbers: 15006, 11636, 11638, 82096, & 82094 

Site Data: 

• This Phase 194.95 acres.
• This Phase contains 336 Single Family Lots & 98 Single Family Attached Lots.

Zoning District: R-6 Conditional District & MR Conditional District Planned Unit Development (PUD).  
Outlined within Southbrook Development Plan/Ordinance 23-O-011.  

Staff Analysis: 

• Mill Street Townes was zoned as a R-6 and M-R Planned Unit Development (PUD) Conditional
District due to the significant amount of environmentally sensitive land found on the site.  This allowed
the developer to cluster development into smaller pockets in order to achieve a density that matches
the Suburban Residential Character area as described within he Comprehensive Land Use Plan.
The Southbrook Development Plan/Ordinance outlines development requirements specific to this
development.  Anything that is not addressed within the Southbrook Development Plan must meet
the town's requirements for the principal zoning district (whether R-6 or M-R).

The proposed Preliminary Plat does not meet the requirement of the Town of Winterville as detailed on the 
staff report.  The Preliminary Plat has been reviewed by the Winterville Technical Review Committee and has 
not received approval.  Town of Winterville Staff recommends the denial of the Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary 
Plat.  

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Denial of Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat as it does not meet the standards of the Town of 
Winterville.  



BROOKSTONE
PHASE 1

BK 71 PG 118

M
E

LL
O

N
 D

O
W

N
S

PH
AS

E 
1

BK
 7

1 
PG

 1
91

MELLON DOWNS
PHASE 11-B

BK 79 PG 130

LAURIE MEADOWS
PH3, SECT A
PB 81 PG 52

LAURIE MEADOWS
PH3, SECT B
PB 82 PG 55

HOLLY GROVE
SECTION 1

PB 84 PG 89

CE-01

VICINITY MAP  (Scale: 1'' = 2000')

R-10 CUD

NEUSE BUFFER

R
-1

2.
5 

C
U

D

TO
W

N
 L

IM
IT

S 
LI

N
E

(IN
)

(O
U

T)

NORTH = 644431.63
EAST = 2479041.77

NEUSE BUFFER
50' W

IDE

N
EU

SE BU
FFER

50' W
IDE

TOWN LIMITS LINE

(IN)

(OUT)

TOWN LIMITS LINE

(IN)

(OUT)

NORTH = 643200.02
EAST = 2474886.35

N
EU

SE
 B

U
FF

ER

50
' W

ID
E

NEUSE BUFFER

50' W
IDE

SWQ

SWQ
SWQ

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

Tr
ac

t "
B"

 B
ou

nd
ar

y Tr
a c

t  "
B "

 B
o u

nd
ar

y

S t
re

e t
 " E

"

Tract "B" Boundary

Street "F"

Street "G"

Stre
et "E

"

Tract "A" Boundary

Street "A"

Tract "A" Boundary

1 2 3 4 5

B C

1 2 3 4 5

D

1 2 3 4 5

E1
2

3
4

5

F

1

2

3

4

Street "B"

St
re

et
 "C

"

1
2

3
4

5
6

6

I

J

K

1
2

3
4

5

1 2 3 4 5

SW
Q

A
1

2
3

4
5

6

SWQ

SWQ

44
SWQ

1 2 3 4 5
1

3
4 5

2

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

V

Y

U

Z

AA

T

BB WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

50' WIDE

1 2 3 4 51 2 3 4 5

1
2

3
4

5
6W

54

12 parks

14 parks

24 parks

1
2

3
4

5
6

X

Phase Two Boundary

Phase Two Boundary - PIEDMONT NATURAL GAS EASEMENT -

- PIEDMONT NATURAL GAS EASEMENT -

- P
IEDMONT NATURAL GAS EASEMENT -

G

H

1
2

3
4

1

22
 p

ar
ks

2 3 4 5

Stre
et "E

"

SW
Q

SWQ

FUTURE

S
R

Q

P

O

NML

Matchline (sheet CE-03)

Matchline (sheet CE-02)

Trailside    Lane

Freshm
eado

w     
Cou

rt

Middlecrest 
Driv

e

Trails
ide

 La
ne

SWQ

Whispy Vines Place

Trailside Lane

Spring Tree Lane

So
ut

hb
ro

ok
 D

riv
e

Streamwood Place

Middlecrest Drive

Cassena Drive

Branchside Circle

Tim
bergreen Drive

Cassena Drive

Wild Olive
   C

ourt

Phase 2a

Phase 2c
Phase 2b

Phase 2d

SD 9.6.24
To P&Z & Council. 
Rec. Denial. Doesn't
Meet Standards.  

stephen.penn
Received



BROOKSTONE
PHASE 1

BK 71 PG 118

NEUSE BUFFER
50' W

IDE

N
EU

SE BU
FFER

50' W
IDE

TOWN LIMITS LINE

(IN)

(OUT)

NORTH = 643200.02
EAST = 2474886.35

WETLANDS

WETL

WETLANDS

Tract "A" Boundary 4

SWQ

SWQ

44
SWQ

1 2 3 4 5
1

3
4 5

2

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1
2

3
4

5
6

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

V

Y

U

Z

AA

T

BB WETLANDS

WETLANDS

1 2 3 4 51 2 3 4 5

1
2

3
4

5
6W

54

12 parks

14 parks

24 parks

1
2

3
4

5
6

X

Phase Two Boundary

- PIEDMONT NATURAL GAS EASEMENT -

G

SWQ

S
R

Q

P

O

NML

Matchline (sheet CE-03)

Matchline (sheet CE-02)

Phase 2
±194.95 Ac.
336 LOTS

98 TOWNHOMES
PUD CONDITIONAL DISTRICT

R-6 CD & M-R CD; ORDINANCE 23-0-011
AVERAGE LOT SIZE: 8,689 S.F.

Streamwood Place

Middlecrest Drive

Cassena Drive
Branchside Circle

Tim
bergreen Drive

Cassena Drive

Wild Olive
   C

ourt

Phase 2a

Phase 2d

CE-02



NEUSE BUFFER

TO
W

N
 L

IM
IT

S 
LI

N
E

(IN
)

(O
U

T)

NORTH = 644431.63
EAST = 2479041.77

N
EU

SE
 B

U
FF

ER

50
' W

ID
E

NEUSE BUFFER

50
' W

ID
E

SWQ

SWQ

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

Tract "B" Boundary

Stre
et 

"E
"

SW
Q

4
5

6

BB WETLANDS

WETLANDS

50' WIDE

Phase Two Boundary

Phase 2
±194.95 Ac.
336 LOTS

98 TOWNHOMES
PUD CONDITIONAL DISTRICT

R-6 CD & M-R CD; ORDINANCE 23-0-011
AVERAGE LOT SIZE: 8,689 S.F.

- PIEDMONT NATURAL GAS EASEMENT -

- P
IEDMONT NATURAL GAS EASEMENT -

Stre
et 

"E
"

SW
Q

FUTURE

Matchline (sheet CE-03)

Matchline (sheet CE-02)

Trailside    Lane

Fresh
mea

dow
    

 Cou
rt

Middlec
rest 

Driv
e

Tra
ils

ide La
ne

SWQ

Whispy Vines Place

Trailside Lane

Spring Tree Lane

So
ut

hb
ro

ok
 D

ri
ve

a Drive

Branchside Circle

Phase 2c
Phase 2b

CE-03



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Preliminary Plat Report for Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat.  
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Southbrook NC, LLC (Scott Moore).  
Submission Type:  Preliminary Plat.  
CONDITIONS Zoned R-6 Conditional District & MR Conditional District Planned 

Unit Development (PUD) as outlined Within Ordinance Number 23-
O-011 

LOCATION Church Street Extension & Laurie Ellis Rd.   
PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 15006, 11636, 11638, 82096, & 82094 
Site Data This Phase contains 336 Single Family Lots & 98 Single Family 

Attached Lots.  
TRACT SIZE This Phase contains 194.95 acres. 
TOPOGRAPHY Flat 
VEGETATION Cleared, Wooded, Etc.  
  

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant/ Wooded/ ETC.  
 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ADJACENT LAND USE 
N Single Family Residential  

 W Single Family Residential.  
E Vacant/Farm Land.  
S Single Family Residential & 

Farmland.   

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT None.  
ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS See Construction Drawings or Preliminary Plat.  
FLOODPLAIN None on current maps.  
STREAMS Southeast Drainage Lateral SC-35A, Tributary of 

off Swift Creek 
OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 

stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

  



 

2 
Staff Report 

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 
Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.
  

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 
Requirements). No bufferyard is required due to proposed and adjoining land uses.  

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Laurie Ellis Road – NCDOT Road & Minor 
Thoroughfare.  
Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 
The Phase 1 Preliminary Plat showed access from 
Laurie Ellis Road, Church Street Extension, 
Cassena Drive (from Eli's Ridge); and Sparrow Ln. 
(from Mellon Downs).   

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Laurie Ellis Rd– 2,800 
Church Street Ext - 200 (Measured closer to 
Reedy Branch Intersection).  

Level Of Service (Transportation Analysis)  
Current= 2016 Study; Future= 2045 Projection.  
 
* LOS is rated from A-F: A is the best, F the worst. 
  
* Roadway Improvement and street design is 
based upon achieving a minimum of LOS D on 
existing facilities and LOS C on new facilities. 

Laurie Ellis Road- 
o Current LOS A (Extremely Low A). 
o Future LOS A (Extremely Low A).  

 
Church Street Extension is not analyzed by the 
study. 

TRIP GENERATION TBD.  
SIDEWALKS Required. 
TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD by NCDOT.  
STREET CONNECTIVITY Town Ordinances and documents support 

interconnectivity within the subdivision and to 
adjoining properties.   

OTHER N/A 
 

 

 

 



 

3 
Staff Report 

 

 

  
STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 

 
Staff Analysis 

 
The Proposed Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat does not meet the 
standards of the Town or the Southbrook Development Plan as 
outlined within Ordinance 23-O-011.  
 
1. The "Block" created by Southbrook Drive, Trailside Lane, and 

Middlecrest Drive exceed the Town's Standard for Block size.  
a. Winterville's Subdivision Ordinance requires block lengths 

between 400' and 1,200'. 
b. Staff doesn't suggest that Town Council approve this 

"Modification" from the Subdivision Ordinance as it doesn’t 
create "equal or better performance". 

i.  Winterville's Comprehensive Plan would suggest that 
800' block lengths should be the maximum block 
distance for "Suburban Residential" classified areas. 
Further supporting staff's recommendation to deny this 
proposal.  Please see Comprehensive Plan's block size 
recommendations screenshot below:  



 

4 
Staff Report 

 



 

5 
Staff Report 

 



 

6 
Staff Report 

 
 

2. Town has requested Middlecrest Drive to be looped and for the 



 

7 
Staff Report 

col-de-sac to be eliminated and believe this col-de-sac proper 
interconnectivity within their neighborhood. .   

a. Winterville's Subdivision Ordinance is intended to provide for 
orderly growth and development: for the coordination of 
transportation networks and utilities within proposed 
subdivisions with existing or planned streets and highways and 
with other public facilities; and for the distribution of population 
and traffic in a manner that will avoid congestion and 
overcrowding and will create conditions that substantially 
promote public health, safety, and general welfare. 

i. The proposed subdivision contains a significant amount 
of col-de-sacs.  The Middlecrest Drive Col-De-Sac can 
easily be realigned in order to remove this dead-end 
street.  

ii. The Town of Winterville wants to avoid inheriting col-de-
sacs and deadend streets as much as possible.  

 
b. Winterville has reviewed each Col-De-Sac within the proposed 

subdivision and have significant concerns with the amount of 
col-de-sacs in the subdivision and the lack of interconnectivity 
for residents within the Col-De-Sac.  Some of the proposed Col-
De-Sacs are a result of topographic or environmental 
constraints.  Neither topographic, nor environmental constraints 
are the issue with this col-de-sac.  Col-de-sacs limit 
connectivity, reduce walkability, result in slower emergency 
response times, creates less efficient infrastructure and creates 
expensive upkeep for the Town of Winterville while increasing 
issues and concerns.  
 

c.  Winterville's Ordinances, policies, and plans discourage 
unnecessary col-de-sacs.  

i.  Subdivision Ordinance154.21 #3. " Connection to 
Adjoining Property- Proposed streets shall be extended 
to the boundary of the subdivision for connection to 
existing streets on the boundary of adjoining property or 
for future connection. Cul-de-sacs shall not be used to 
avoid connection with an existing street, to avoid the 
extension of a thoroughfare or collector street, or to 
avoid connection to adjoining property. In general, cul-
de-sacs shall not be used to provide access to 
development on the boundary of the development. Cul-
de-sacs shall not exceed 800 feet in length unless 
necessitated by topography or property accessibility and 
specifically approved by the Town Council. 
Measurement shall be from the point where the 
centerline of the deadend street intersects with the 
centerline of a general circulation street to the center of 



 

8 
Staff Report 

the turnaround of the cul-de-sac. Where one cul-de-sac 
extends from another cul-de-sac, the end of each cul-de-
sac shall be no more than 800 feet from a general 
circulation street as measured by the centerline of the 
streets."  
 

d. Winterville's Comprehensive Plan: 
i.  Infrastructure and Mobility: Policy 2 recommends that 

the town "Discourage cul-de-sacs and dead end streets 
wherever possible. An overabundance of sudations 
using cul-de-sacs can cause additional delay and hinder 
emergency access." 

ii. Additional Image and Text within the Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan regarding Col-de-Sacs: 

 

 
 
 



 

9 
Staff Report 

 
 
 

 



10 
Staff Report 

3. Middlecrest Drive is outside of the "Single Family Attached" Zoning 
Map.

a. Southbrook Dev Standards state "Should the developer want to 
make changes to the Development Plan, The Planning Director 
can approve specific minor revisions or changes that represent 
less intensive uses. An example of one such modification is 
changing the type of residential use that results in a decrease 
in density.  The approval of the Planning Director is an 
administrative approval only and all other changes to this 
Development Plan will constitute a rezoning and require City 
Council Approval".

i. The "Middlecrest Drive" townhomes represent a 
higher density at this location however the overall 
number of Townhomes will not increase throughout the 
development.

b. Will not increase the number of Single Family Attached Units-
just the location.

c. Staff doesn't see any issues with relocating a portion of the 
Single Family Attached as a modification equal or better 
performance in the eyes of Town Council.

d. Staff suggests the removal of the a col-de-sac, in this location 
and to provide adequate interconnectivity. Staff recommends 
that the developer needs to revisit this design to create more 
efficient interconnectivity, and utility design. 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends denial of Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat as it does not 
meet the standards of the Town of Winterville, the Winterville Subdivision 
Ordinance, or the Southbrook Planned Unit Development Plan.  Staff's major 
concern regarding Southbrook, Phase 2 Preliminary Plat is the large block length 
that doesn't meet the requirements of the town and the six newly proposed col-de-
sacs to become inherited by the Town from this project.  

Town Staff recommends that the developer revisit their design to incorporate 
smaller blocks, to remove col-de-sacs within the subdivision, and to ensure that 
the proposal meets all requirements of the Southbrook Development Plan, The 
Town and The State prior to resubmission.   



Existing/ Current PUD and REZONING Ordinance for Southbrook

stephen.penn
Highlight



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



stephen.penn
Stamp



 
 
 
 
 

2571 RAILROAD ST 
PO BOX 1459 

WINTERVILLE, NC 
28590 

   
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
  

 
 
To: Town Council 

 
From: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

 
Date: September 3, 2024   
Re: Monthly Report 

Please find below a summary of the projects, tasks and issues the Planning Department has been 
working on during the month of August 2024. 
 

ZONING COMPLIANCES Total = 36 YTD (2024) = 160 
New Single-Family Residential 22 58 
Accessory Structures 3 14 
New Business 2 12 
Residential Fence or Deck 6 45 
Additions/Pools/Other 3 31 
 
Other Activities/Projects 

  

Town Council 8/2024 Yarborough Rezoning (Copper Creek Phase 
3) Approved; Cornerstone Annexation (Last 
11 lots) Approved; Quail Trace Preliminary 
Plat Approved; Accessory Dwelling Units 
(ADU) Council directed staff to move 
forward with an ordinance text amendment 
proposal.  

Planning & Zoning Board  8/2024 Mill Street Townes Preliminary Plat 
Approved.  

New Submissions 8/2024 Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat 
Resubmission. Eli's Ridge Phase 5 Final 
Plat; Villa Grande Phase 3 Annexation; 
Southbrook PUD Rezoning Amendment.  

Other 8/2024 Signed off on one exempt Recombination 
Map (Stella Little Property); Held Meeting 
with Pitt County Development 
Commission;  

 


	ADP5239.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brewery Ordinance Amendment. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  12/16/2016
	 Final  12/16/2016
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA856.tmp
	Zoning Ordinance Amendment�(Wine and Craft Beer Store, Microbrewery/Brewpub, & Regional Brewery)
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Wine & Craft Beer Store
	Microbrewery/ Brewpub
	Microbrewery/ Brewpub
	Microbrewery 
	Special Requirement 23:
	Trollingwood In Greenville, NC  (Microbrewery)
	Hams- Greenville, NC (brew Pub)
	Koi Pond- Rocky Mount, NC (Microbrewery)
	Regional Brewery
	Regional Brewery
	The Duck-Rabbit Craft Brewery- Farmville, NC
	Mother Earth- Kinston, NC
	Contact Stephen Penn for Questions or Details 

	ADPF9C8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Permitted & Conditional Use Workshop Changes to Agricultural-Residential (A-R) District
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7513.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Thad’s Reedy Branch Subdivision. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP534D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 135 Liberty St. Lean-To.  
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP25E9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 447 Cooper Street Accessory Building. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7D8E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 88 Cooper Street & 204 Cross Street- Winterville Machine Works 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB25C.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP392A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6D56.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP172E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC99D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6E29.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3CFE.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Ange Plaza Lot 26 & Revision of Lot 23.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3E28.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Harris Division Tract A Annexation: Villa Grande Annexation of newly proposed section. Annexation Contingent on approval of rezoning and preliminary plat. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7C19.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 3, Revision of Lots 16-26.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPFA4F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Summer Winds, Section 2, Phase 2
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP529D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Holly Grove
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3733.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP454A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPDB9C.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ADP93A4.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms, LLC Property Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPEE2B.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	Prelim Plat - Copper Creek, Sect 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prelim Plat

	2-Prelim Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Prelim Plat



	ADP5CA8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase 2
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4160.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ADPBAA9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 4
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP38F3.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Davis Property (parcel 10962) - Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD386.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Worthington Property (parcels 25820, 25758, 80305) - Rezoning 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4C73.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookstone, Phase 1 – CUD Amendment 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP117A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Tattooing as a Permitted Use in General Business
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP869B.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Holly Grove, Section – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP1379.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase One, Section B – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	2019_06_10_ Villa Grande Phase One Section 'B' Final Plat Prelim Submitted.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Finalplat 2


	ADPFB38.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Happy Trail Farms – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF691.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Janet Hare and Joan Neitz Property – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC07C.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP9EA9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: E & S Homes – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB779.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC355.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF23A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP5979.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Ange Plaza, Lots 20 & 21 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP486F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Merizio Property – Rezoning Request (3018 Church Street Ext – parcel 68782)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP42B1.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage:
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP894C.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage:
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP908D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Pitt County Shrine Club – Rezoning Request (3100 Church Street Ext – parcel 73685)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP44FE.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 5 – Maintain and improve neighborhood character.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPA65E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: F & A Construction – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB0DC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: F & A Construction – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP919B.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial):
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP103A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance – Proposed Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD8AF.tmp
	ARTICLE 1. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES.
	SECTION A. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.
	SECTION B. FINDINGS OF FACT.
	(1) The flood prone areas within the jurisdiction of the Town of Winterville are subject to periodic inundation which results in loss of life, property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public ...
	(2) These flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains causing increases in flood heights and velocities and by the occupancy in flood prone areas of uses vulnerable to floods or other hazards.

	SECTION C. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE.
	(1) restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, and property due to water or erosion hazards or that result in damaging increases in erosion, flood heights or velocities;
	(2) require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities that serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;
	(3) control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers, which are involved in the accommodation of floodwaters;
	(4) control filling, grading, dredging, and all other development that may increase erosion or flood damage; and
	(5) prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that will unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands.

	SECTION D. OBJECTIVES.
	(1) protect human life, safety, and health;
	(2) minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;
	(3) minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;
	(4) minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions;
	(5) minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and gas mains, electric, telephone, cable and sewer lines, streets, and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas;
	(68) help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood prone areas; and
	(79) ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a Special Flood Hazard Area.


	ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS.
	(a) built on a single chassis;
	(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
	(c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and
	(d) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.
	(a) any correction of existing violations of State or community health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the community code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or
	(b) any alteration of a historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure.

	ARTICLE 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS.
	SECTION A. LANDS TO WHICH THIS ORDINANCE APPLIES.
	SECTION B. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS.
	SECTION D. COMPLIANCE.
	SECTION E. ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.
	SECTION F. INTERPRETATION.
	(a) considered as minimum requirements;
	(b) liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and
	(c) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under State statutes.

	SECTION G. WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY.
	SECTION H. PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.

	ARTICLE 4. ADMINISTRATION.
	SECTION A. DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.
	SECTION B. FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION, PERMIT AND CERTIFICATION
	REQUIREMENTS.
	(1) Application Requirements.  Application for a Floodplain Development Permit shall be made to the Floodplain Administrator prior to any development activities located within Special Flood Hazard Areas.  The following items shall be presented to the ...
	(a) A plot plan drawn to scale which shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following specific details of the proposed floodplain development:
	(i) the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area of development/disturbance; existing and proposed structures, utility systems, grading/pavement areas, fill materials, storage areas, drainage facilities, and other development;
	(ii) the boundary of the Special Flood Hazard Area as delineated on the FIRM or other flood map as determined in Article 3, Section B, or a statement that the entire lot is within the Special Flood Hazard Area;
	(iii) flood zone(s) designation of the proposed development area as determined on the FIRM or other flood map as determined in Article 3, Section B;
	(iv) the boundary of the floodway(s) or non-encroachment area(s) as determined in Article 3, Section B;
	(v) the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) where provided as set forth in Article 3, Section B; Article 4, Section C; or Article 5, Section D;
	(vi) the old and new location of any watercourse that will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed development; and
	(vii) the certification of the plot plan by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer.

	(b) Proposed elevation, and method thereof, of all development within a Special Flood Hazard Area including but not limited to:
	(i) Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the proposed reference level (including basement) of all structures;
	(ii) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential structure in Zone AE, A or AO will be floodproofed; and
	(iii) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any proposed utility systems will be elevated or floodproofed.

	(c) If floodproofing, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65) with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan that include, but are not limited to, installation, exercise, and maintenance of floodproofing measures.
	(d) A Foundation Plan, drawn to scale,, which shall include details of the proposed foundation system to ensure all provisions of this ordinance are met.  These details include but are not limited to:
	(i) The proposed method of elevation, if applicable (i.e., fill, solid foundation perimeter wall, solid backfilled foundation, open foundation on columns/posts/piers/piles/shear walls); and
	(ii) Openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces on walls in accordance with Article 5, Section B(4)(c) when solid foundation perimeter walls are used in Zones A, AO, AE, and A1-30.

	(e) Usage details of any enclosed areas below the lowest floor.
	(f) Plans and/or details for the protection of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems to be located and constructed to minimize flood damage.
	(g) Certification that all other Local, State and Federal permits required prior to floodplain development permit issuance have been received.
	(h) Documentation for placement of Recreational Vehicles and/or Temporary Structures, when applicable, to ensure that the provisions of Article 5, Section B, subsections (6) and (7) of this ordinance are met.
	(i) A description of proposed watercourse alteration or relocation, when applicable, including an engineering report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to properties located both up...

	(2) Permit Requirements.  The Floodplain Development Permit shall include, but not be limited to:
	(a) A description of the development to be permitted under the floodplain development permit.
	(b) The Special Flood Hazard Area determination for the proposed development in accordance with available data specified in Article 3, Section B.
	(c) The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the reference level and all attendant utilities.
	(d) The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the protection of all public utilities.
	(e) All certification submittal requirements with timelines.
	(f) A statement that no fill material or other development shall encroach into the floodway or non-encroachment area of any watercourse, as applicable.
	(g) The flood openings requirements, if in Zones A, AO, AE or A1-30.

	(3) Certification Requirements.
	(a) Elevation Certificates
	(i) An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31) is required after the reference level is established.  Within seven (7) calendar days of establishment of the reference level elevation, it shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodpla...
	(ii) A final as-built Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31) is required after construction is completed and prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy issuance.  It shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a...

	(b) Floodproofing Certificate
	(i) If non-residential floodproofing is used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65), with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan are required ...
	(c) If a manufactured home is placed within Zone A, AO, AE, or A1-30 and the elevation of the chassis is more than 36 inches in height above grade, an engineered foundation certification is required in accordance with  the provisions of Article 5, Sec...
	(d) If a watercourse is to be altered or relocated, a description of the extent of watercourse alteration or relocation; a professional engineer’s certified report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the watercours...
	(e) Certification Exemptions.  The following structures, if located within Zone A, AO, AE or A1-30, are exempt from the elevation/floodproofing certification requirements specified in items (a) and (b) of this subsection:
	(i) Recreational Vehicles meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(6)(a);
	(ii) Temporary Structures meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(7); and
	(iii)     (iii) Accessory Structures less than 150 square feet meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(8).

	(a) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair...
	(b) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building or structure;
	(c) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage; and
	(d) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction requirements of the NC Building Code and this ordinance is required.


	SECTION C. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.
	The Floodplain Administrator shall perform, but not be limited to, the following duties:
	(1) Review all floodplain development applications and issue permits for all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that the requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied.
	(2) Review all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that all necessary Local, State and Federal permits have been received.
	(3) Notify adjacent communities and the North Carolina Department of Crime Control and Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management, State Coordinator for the National Flood Insurance Program prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse, ...
	(4) Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or relocated portion of said watercourse so that the flood-carrying capacity is maintained.
	(5) Prevent encroachments into floodways and non-encroachment areas unless the certification and flood hazard reduction provisions of Article 5, Section F are met.
	(6) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the reference level (including basement) and all attendant utilities of all new and substantially improved structures, in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).
	(7) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which all new and substantially improved structures and utilities have been floodproofed, in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).
	(8) Obtain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of all public utilities in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).
	(9) When floodproofing is utilized for a particular structure, obtain certifications from a registered professional engineer or architect in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3) and Article 5, Section B(2).
	(10) Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard Areas, floodways, or non-encroachment areas (for example, where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions...
	(11) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data has not been provided in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any BFE data, along with floodway data or non-encroachment area data available from a Fed...
	(12) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided but no floodway or non-encroachment area data has been provided in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any floodway data or non-encroachme...
	(13) When the lowest floor and the lowest adjacent grade of a structure or the lowest ground elevation of a parcel in a Special Flood Hazard Area is above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), advise the property owner of the option to apply for a Letter of...
	(14) Permanently maintain all records that pertain to the administration of this ordinance and make these records available for public inspection, recognizing that such information may be subject to the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended.
	(15) Make on-site inspections of work in progress.  As the work pursuant to a floodplain development permit progresses, the Floodplain Administrator shall make as many inspections of the work as may be necessary to ensure that the work is being done a...
	(16) Issue stop-work orders as required.  Whenever a building or part thereof is being constructed, reconstructed, altered, or repaired in violation of this ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator may order the work to be immediately stopped.  The sto...
	(17) Revoke floodplain development permits as required.  The Floodplain Administrator may revoke and require the return of the floodplain development permit by notifying the permit holder in writing stating the reason(s) for the revocation.  Permits s...
	(18) Make periodic inspections throughout the Special Flood Hazard Areas within the jurisdiction of the community.  The Floodplain Administrator and each member of his or her inspections department shall have a right, upon presentation of proper crede...
	(19) Follow through with corrective procedures of Article 4, Section D.
	(20) Review, provide input, and make recommendations for variance requests.
	(21) Maintain a current map repository to include, but not limited to, the FIS Report, FIRM and other official flood maps and studies adopted in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B of this ordinance, including any revisions thereto ...
	(22) Coordinate revisions to FIS reports and FIRMs, including Letters of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-Fs) and Letters of Map Revision (LOMRs).

	SECTION D. CORRECTIVE PROCEDURES.
	(1) Violations to be Corrected:  When the Floodplain Administrator finds violations of applicable State and local laws, it shall be his or her duty to notify the owner or occupant of the building of the violation.  The owner or occupant shall immediat...
	(2) Actions in Event of Failure to Take Corrective Action:  If the owner of a building or property shall fail to take prompt corrective action, the Floodplain Administrator shall give the owner written notice, by certified or registered mail to the ow...
	(a) that the building or property is in violation of the floodplain management regulations;
	(b) that a hearing will be held before the Floodplain Administrator at a designated place and time, not later than ten (10) days after the date of the notice, at which time the owner shall be entitled to be heard in person or by counsel and to present...
	(c) that following the hearing, the Floodplain Administrator may issue an order to alter, vacate, or demolish the building; or to remove fill as applicable.

	(3) Order to Take Corrective Action: If, upon a hearing held pursuant to the notice prescribed above, the Floodplain Administrator shall find that the building or development is in violation of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, he or she shall is...
	(4) Appeal:  Any owner who has received an order to take corrective action may appeal the order to the local elected governing body by giving notice of appeal in writing to the Floodplain Administrator and the clerk within ten (10) days following issu...
	(5) Failure to Comply with Order:  If the owner of a building or property fails to comply with an order to take corrective action for which no appeal has been made or fails to comply with an order of the governing body following an appeal, the owner s...

	SECTION E. VARIANCE PROCEDURES.
	(1) The Board of Adjustment as established by the Town of Winterville, hereinafter referred to as the “appeal board”, shall hear and decide requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance.
	(2) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the appeal board may appeal such decision to the Court, as provided in Chapter 7A of the North Carolina General Statutes.
	(3) Variances may be issued for:
	(a) the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon the determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and that the variance is the minimum necessary to...
	(b) functionally dependent facilities if determined to meet the definition as stated in Article 2 of this ordinance, provided provisions of Article 4, Section E(9)(b), (c), and (e) have been satisfied, and such facilities are protected by methods that...
	(c) any other type of development, provided it meets the requirements of this Section.

	(4) In passing upon variances, the appeal board shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified in other sections of this ordinance, and:
	(a) the danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;
	(b) the danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;
	(c) the susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of such damage on the individual owner;
	(d) the importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;
	(e) the necessity to the facility of a waterfront location as defined under Article 2 of this ordinance as a functionally dependent facility, where applicable;
	(f) the availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use;
	(g) the compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;
	(h) the relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain management program for that area;
	(i) the safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;
	(j) the expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and
	(k) the costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, and streets and bridges.

	(5) A written report addressing each of the above factors shall be submitted with the application for a variance.
	(6) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this ordinance, the appeal board may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes and objectives of this ordinance.
	(7) Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the difference between the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) and the elevation to which the structure is to be built and that such construction below the BFE increases r...
	(8) The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the State of North Carolina upon request.
	(9) Conditions for Variances:
	(a) Variances shall not be issued when the variance will make the structure in violation of other Federal, State, or local laws, regulations, or ordinances.
	(b) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway or non-encroachment area if the variance would result in any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge.
	(c) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.
	(d) Variances shall only be issued prior to development permit approval.
	(e) Variances shall only be issued upon:
	(i) a showing of good and sufficient cause;
	(ii) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship; and
	(iii) a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with ex...


	(10) A variance may be issued for solid waste disposal facilities or sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage facilities that are located in Special Flood Hazard Areas provided that all of the following conditi...
	(a) The use serves a critical need in the community.
	(b) No feasible location exists for the use outside the Special Flood Hazard Area.
	(c) The reference level of any structure is elevated or floodproofed to at least the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation.
	(d) The use complies with all other applicable Federal, State and local laws.
	(e) The Town of Winterville has notified the Secretary of the North Carolina Department of Crime Control and Public Safety of its intention to grant a variance at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to granting the variance.



	ARTICLE 5. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION.
	SECTION A. GENERAL STANDARDS.
	(1) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure.
	(2) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage.
	(3) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damages.
	(4) Electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding to the R...
	(5) All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system.
	(6) New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters.
	(7) On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding.
	(8) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a structure, which is in compliance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall meet the requirements of “new construction” as contained in this ordinance.
	(98) Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the repair, reconstruction, or replacement of a building or structure existing on the effective date of this ordinance and located totally or partially within the floodway, non-encroachment area, or stream ...
	(109) New solid waste disposal facilities and sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage facilities shall not be permitted, except by variance as specified in Article 4, Section E(10).  A structure or tank for ch...
	(1110) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.
	(1211) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage.
	(1312) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.
	(1413)  All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have received all necessary permits from those governmental agencies for which approval is required by Federal or State law, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution C...

	SECTION B. SPECIFIC STANDARDS.
	(1) Residential Construction.  New construction and substantial improvement of any residential structure (including manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, including basement, elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevatio...
	(2) Non-Residential Construction.  New construction and substantial improvement of any commercial, industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the reference level, including basement, elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protectio...
	(3) Manufactured Homes.
	(a) New and replacement manufactured homes shall be elevated so that the reference level of the manufactured home is no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation, as defined in Article 2 of this ordinance.
	(b) Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, either by certified engineered foundation system, or in accordance with the most current edition of the State o...
	(c) All enclosures or skirting below the lowest floor shall meet the requirements of Article 5, Section B(4).
	(d) An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all residents of all new, substantially improved or substantially damaged manufactured home parks or subdivisions located within flood prone areas. This plan shall be filed with and approved b...

	(4) Elevated Buildings.  Fully enclosed area, of new construction and substantially improved structures, which is below the lowest floor:
	(a) shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but shall only be used for parking of vehicles, building access, or limited storage of maintenance equipment used in connection with the premises.  Access to the enclosed area shall be the minimu...
	(b) shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials at least to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation; and
	(c) shall include, in Zones A, AO, AE, and A1-30, flood openings to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters.  To meet this requirement, the openings must either be certified by a profe...
	(i) A minimum of two flood openings on different sides of each enclosed area subject to flooding;
	(ii) The total net area of all flood openings must be at least one (1) square inch for each square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;
	(iii) If a building has more than one enclosed area, each enclosed area must have flood openings to allow floodwaters to automatically enter and exit;
	(iv) The bottom of all required flood openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above the adjacent grade;
	(v) Flood openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices, provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions; and
	(vi) Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not considered enclosures for regulatory purposes, and, therefore, do not require flood openings.  Masonry or wood underpinning, regardless of structural status, is considered an enclosure and requires flo...


	(5) Additions/Improvements.
	(a) Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures when the addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are:
	(i) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements must be designed to minimize flood damages and must not be any more non-conforming than the existing structure.
	(ii) a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction.

	(b) Additions to post-FIRM structures with no modifications to the existing structure other than a standard door in the common wall shall require only the addition to comply with the standards for new construction.
	(c) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures when the addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are:
	(i) not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements only must comply with the standards for new construction.
	(ii) a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction.


	(6) Recreational Vehicles.  Recreational vehicles shall either:
	(a) be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utiliti...
	(b)  meet all the requirements for new construction.

	(7) Temporary Non-Residential Structures.  Prior to the issuance of a floodplain development permit for a temporary structure, the applicant must submit to the Floodplain Administrator a plan for the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurr...
	(a) a specified time period for which the temporary use will be permitted.  Time specified may not exceed three (3) months, renewable up to one (1) year;
	(b) the name, address, and phone number of the individual responsible for the removal of the temporary structure;
	(c) the time frame prior to the event at which a structure will be removed (i.e., minimum of 72 hours before landfall of a hurricane or immediately upon flood warning notification);
	(d) a copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with the entity responsible for physical removal of the structure; and
	(e) designation, accompanied by documentation, of a location outside the Special Flood Hazard Area, to which the temporary structure will be moved.

	(8) Accessory Structures.  When accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc.) are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:
	(a) Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including working, sleeping, living, cooking or restroom areas);
	(b) Accessory structures shall not be temperature-controlled;
	(c) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential;
	(d) Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters;
	(e) Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Section A(1);
	(f) All service facilities such as electrical shall be installed in accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Section A(4); and
	(g) Flood openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided below Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation in conformance with the provisions of Article 5, Section B(4)(c).
	An accessory structure with a footprint less than 150 square feet that satisfies the criteria outlined above does not require an elevation or floodproofing certificate.  Elevation or floodproofing certifications are required for all other accessory st...

	(9) Tanks.  When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:
	(a) Underground tanks.  Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoy...
	(b) Above-ground tanks, elevated.  Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be elevated to or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation on a supporting structure that is designed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement during co...
	(c) Above-ground tanks, not elevated.  Above-ground tanks that do not meet the elevation requirements of Article 5, Section B (2) of this Article shall be permitted in flood hazard areas provided the tanks are designed, constructed, installed, and anc...
	(d) Tank inlets and vents.  Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be:
	(i) At or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the design flood; and
	(ii) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood.


	(10) Other Development.
	(b) Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways and NEAs.  Retaining walls and sidewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance.


	SECTION C. RESERVED.
	SECTION D. STANDARDS FOR FLOODPLAINS WITHOUT ESTABLISHED BASE FLOOD
	ELEVATIONS.
	(1) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements or new development shall be permitted within a distance of twenty (20) feet each side from top of bank or five times the width of the stream, whichever is greater, unless...
	(2) The BFE used in determining the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation shall be determined based on the following criteria:
	(a) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available from other sources, all new construction and substantial improvements within such areas shall also comply with all applicable provisions of this ordinance and shall be elevated or floodproofed in a...
	(c) All subdivision, manufactured home park and other development proposals shall provide Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data if development is greater than five (5) acres or has more than fifty (50) lots/manufactured home sites.  Such Base Flood Elevatio...
	(d) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is not available from a Federal, State, or other source as outlined above, the reference level shall be elevated or floodproofed (nonresidential) to or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation, as define...


	SECTION E. STANDARDS FOR RIVERINE FLOODPLAINS WITH BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS BUT WITHOUT ESTABLISHED FLOODWAYS OR NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS.
	(1) Standards of Article 5, Sections A and B; and

	SECTION F. FLOODWAYS AND NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS.
	Areas designated as floodways or non-encroachment areas are located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article 3, Section B.  The floodways and non-encroachment areas are extremely hazardous areas due to the velocity of floodwaters t...
	(1) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements and other developments shall be permitted unless:
	(a) it is demonstrated that the proposed encroachment would not result in any increase in the flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood, based on hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice a...
	(b) a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) has been approved by FEMA.  A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) must also be obtained upon completion of the proposed encroachment.

	(2) If Article 5, Section F(1) is satisfied, all development shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of this ordinance.
	(3) No manufactured homes shall be permitted, except replacement manufactured homes in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, provided the following provisions are met:
	(a) the anchoring and the elevation standards of Article 5, Section B(3); and
	(b) the no encroachment standard of Article 5, Section F(1).


	SECTION G. STANDARDS FOR AREAS OF SHALLOW FLOODING (ZONE AO).
	Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article 3, Section B, are areas designated as shallow flooding areas.  These areas have special flood hazards associated with base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) feet where a clearly d...
	(1)  The reference level shall be elevated at least as high as the depth number specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), in feet, plus a freeboard of two (2 ) feet, above the highest adjacent grade; or at least four (4) feet above the highest...
	(2) Non-residential structures may, in lieu of elevation, be floodproofed to the same level as required in Article 5, Section G(1) so that the structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, below that level shall be watertight wit...
	(3) Adequate drainage paths shall be provided around structures on slopes, to guide floodwaters around and away from proposed structures.


	ARTICLE 6. LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS.
	SECTION A. EFFECT ON RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES UNDER THE EXISTING FLOOD DAMAGE
	PREVENTION ORDINANCE.
	SECTION B. EFFECT UPON OUTSTANDING FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMITS.
	SECTION D. EFFECTIVE DATE.
	SECTION E. ADOPTION CERTIFICATION.


	ADP24F2.tmp
	SECTION D. UOBJECTIVES.
	(1) protect human life, safety, and health;
	(2) minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;
	(3) minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;
	(4) minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions;
	(5) minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and gas mains, electric, telephone, cable and sewer lines, streets, and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas;
	(8) help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood prone areas; and
	(9) ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a Special Flood Hazard Area.
	(3) Certification Requirements.
	(b) Floodproofing Certificate
	(i) If non-residential floodproofing is used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65), with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan are required ...
	(a) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair...
	(b) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building or structure;
	(c) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage; and
	(d) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction requirements of the NC Building Code and this ordinance is required.


	SECTION A. GENERAL STANDARDS.
	(8) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a structure, which is in compliance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall meet the requirements of “new construction” as contained in this ordinance.

	SECTION B. SPECIFIC STANDARDS.
	(9) Tanks.  When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:
	(a) Underground tanks.  Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoy...
	(b) Above-ground tanks, elevated.  Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be elevated to or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation on a supporting structure that is designed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement during co...
	(c) Above-ground tanks, not elevated.  Above-ground tanks that do not meet the elevation requirements of Article 5, Section B (2) of this Article shall be permitted in flood hazard areas provided the tanks are designed, constructed, installed, and anc...
	(d) Tank inlets and vents.  Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be:
	(i) At or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the design flood; and
	(ii) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood.


	(10) Other Development.
	(b) Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways and NEAs.  Retaining walls and sidewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance.



	ADP13AA.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance – Proposed Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC311.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: F & A Construction – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	F&A Const Rezoning Application.pdf
	2020-08-06 - Revised Rezoning Application.pdf
	OWNERSHIP INFORMATION:
	PROPERTY INFORMATION
	ZONING REQUEST
	OWNER/AGENT STATEMENT
	NOTE: AGENTS ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE PROPERTY OWNER MUST HAVE A NOTARIZED STATEMENT FROM THE PROPERTY OWNER GIVING THEM THE AUTHORITY TO ACT ON THE OWNER’S BEHALF.


	ADP70D2.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage (Neighborhood Commercial):
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial):
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPFFE0.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: R. E. Davenport Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 05590)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF4D0.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage:
	Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention (Neighborhood Commercial):
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP1EAB.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: David Evans Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4D52.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: David Evans Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 55092)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPED04.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPA063.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 160D of the NC GS
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPFD36.tmp
	Section 1.2 Authority
	Section 12.2 Proceedings of the Zoning Board of Adjustment
	Section 13.5 Town Council Action
	Section 14.4 Zoning Compliance Certificate With Vested Rights
	Section 4.2 Overlay Zoning Districts Established:  Purposes Set Forth
	Section 4.3 Conditional Use Districts Zoning Established:  Purposes Set Forth
	Section 4.3.1. Conditional Use District with a Site Specific Development Plan
	Section 4.6 Determining Permitted and Conditional Special Uses, Principal Uses and Mixed Uses
	Section 5.2 Agricultural-Residential District (AR)
	Section 5.3 R-20 Residential District
	Section 5.4 R-15 Residential District
	Section 5.4.A  R-12.5 Residential District
	Section 5.5 R-10 Residential District
	Section 5.6 R-8 Residential District
	Section 5.7 R-6 Residential District
	Section 5.8 Multi-Family Residential District (MR)
	Section 5.9 Office and Institutional District (OI)
	Section 5.10 Central Business District (CB)
	Section 5.11 General Business District
	Section 5.11.A Intermediate Commercial District
	Section 5.12 Neighborhood Commercial (CN)
	Section 5.13 Industrial District (I)
	Section 5.15 Conditional Use District
	ARTICLE VI.  TABLE OF PERMITTED AND CONDITIONAL  SPECIAL USES
	Section 6.2 Entries
	Section 6.3 Meaning of Entries
	*******        Changed Heading:  TABLE OF PERMITTED & CONDITIONAL SPECIAL USES   *******
	Section 6.4 Table of Permitted and Conditional Special Uses. (See Table)  ((((REPLACED “C” WITH “S” IN TABLE))))
	SR 8. Planned Unit Development
	SR 37. Wireless Telecommunication Towers and Facilities
	Section 12.5 Powers and Duties of the Board of Adjustment
	ARTICLE XIII.  AMENDMENT PROCEDURES; CONDITIONAL USE DISTRICTS
	Section 13.2 Amendment Initiation
	Section 13.3 Submittal
	Section 13.5 Town Council Action
	Section 13.6 Protest Petition
	Section 13.7 Special Provisions for Conditional Use Districts and Conditional Use Permits
	Section 14.4 Zoning Compliance Certificate With Vested Rights
	Section 15.3 Effects Upon Outstanding Building Permits, Zoning Compliance Permits and Conditional  Special Use Permits
	Section 15.4 Definitions
	Section 15.4 Definitions
	Section 15.4A Conflicts of Interest (G.S. 160D-1-9)
	a) Governing Board. – A governing board member shall not vote on any legislative decision regarding a development regulation adopted pursuant to G.S. 160D where the outcome of the matter being considered is reasonably likely to have a direct, substant...
	b) Appointed Boards. – Members of appointed boards shall not vote on any advisory or legislative decision regarding a development regulation adopted pursuant to G.S. 160D where the outcome of the matter being considered is reasonably likely to have a ...
	c) Administrative Staff. – No staff member shall make a final decision on an administrative decision required by G.S. 160D if the outcome of that decision would have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable financial impact on the staff member ...
	d) Quasi-Judicial Decisions. – A member of any board exercising quasi-judicial functions pursuant to G.S. 160D shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would violate affected persons' constitutional rights to an i...
	e) Resolution of Objection. – If an objection is raised to a board member's participation at or prior to the hearing or vote on a particular matter and that member does not recuse himself or herself, the remaining members of the board shall by majorit...
	f) Familial Relationship. – For purposes of this section, a "close familial relationship" means a spouse, parent, child, brother, sister, grandparent, or grandchild. The term includes the step, half, and in-law relationships.
	** Must prohibit third-party down-zonings; may process local government–initiated down-zonings (S.L. 2019-111, Pt. I.)
	Section 13.2 Amendment Initiation
	Section 13.3 Submittal

	ADPC844.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7AFC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase Two – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP65C5.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4201.tmp
	SR 21. Mini-Warehouse/Self-Storage Units
	Section 14.2 Zoning Compliance Certificates; Building Permits; Certificates of Occupancy Required
	SR 23. ABC Sales for On Premises Consumption; Bars

	ADP7ABC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Zoning Ordinance Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD89A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Kenneth Smith Property (Brookstone, Phase 2) – Rezoning Request (Parcel 70650)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPE619.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP2003.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Carroll Crossing, Section 3 – Rezoning Request (Parcel 04819)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP95C9.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPB0DC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Ange Plaza, Lots 14 & 15 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD83D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7ECD.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eleven at Main
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD848.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPEBF7.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF2C2.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Urban Neighborhood - General Character:
	Commercial Overlay - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPDD65.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Aquatic Holdings, LLC – Rezoning Request (Portion of Parcel 82774)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP5DD1.tmp
	Legal Description For
	Aquatic Holdings, LLC
	Lying and being situate in Winterville, Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more particularly described as follows:
	Beginning at a point in the eastern line of Lot 14 Ange Plaza as recorded in map book 79, page 78 of the Pitt County Registry said point being located S 31-04-43 W – 118.50’ from the northeast corner of said Lot 14 Ange Plaza, thence from said point o...
	N 07-34-02 E – 104.15’, thence with the northern line of the Grant R. Jones property
	N 81-42-54 W – 189.93’ to the northeast corner of the Max Galvin property as recorded in deed book 2003, page 829, thence with the northern line of the Max Galvin property
	N 74-34-55 W – 39.29’, thence leaving the northern line of the Max Galvin property
	N 15-25-05 E – 96.22’, thence N 31-04-43 E – 3.93’, thence S 74-34-55 E – 32.00’, thence S 81-42-54 E – 378.43’ to the point of beginning containing 1.3089 acres.

	ADP3C25.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Neighborhood Center - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP9F31.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Alfred Martin McLawhorn, William Farkas – Rezoning Request (Portion of Parcel 82774)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF3C7.tmp
	Legal Description For
	Alfred Martin McLawhorn
	Lying and being situate in Winterville, Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more particularly described as follows:
	Tract 1
	To be rezoned from R-8 to MR
	Beginning at a point in the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street said point being the northeast corner of the Wilkerson Associates property as recorded in deed book 2755, page 624 of the Pitt County Registry, thence from said point of begin...
	N 67-42-51 W – 1063.62’ to the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11, thence with the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 91.23’ along the arc of a curve said curve being to the left having a radius of 2964.79’ and a chord bearing N 12-30-56 E – 91.22’, the...
	S 11-06-09 W – 291.77’, thence S 67-42-51 E – 562.13’ to the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street, thence with the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street S 22-08-12 W – 106.56’ to the point of beginning containing 6.3702 acres.
	Tract 2
	To be rezoned from R-8 to MR
	Beginning at a point in the western right of way of NCSR 1149 – Mill Street said point being the northeast corner of the Luther E. Carraway, Jr. & Teresa A. Brozowski property as recorded in deed book 3371, page 58 of the Pitt County Registry, thence ...
	N 67-42-51 W – 284.46’, thence N 11-06-09 E – 291.77’, thence N 56-33-49 E – 158.67’ to the southern line of the R.E. Davenport, Jr. Family Limited Partnership property as recorded in deed book 775, page 168, thence with the southern line of the R.E. ...

	ADP7C9.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Urban Neighborhood - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP7DD.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Pitt County Farms, LLC – Rezoning Request (Parcel 60147)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD8DC.tmp
	Legal Description For
	Pitt County Farms, LLC
	Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more particularly described as follows:
	Beginning at a point in the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 said point being located
	N 21-00-11 E – 469.38’ from the intersection of the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 and the northern right of way of Cynthia Road, thence from said point of beginning with the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 N 64-28-36 W – 91.78’, thence N 27-49-0...

	ADP3C67.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Office and Employment - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP25DD.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP21BC.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Urban Neighborhood - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP40A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Aquatic Holdings, LLC – Rezoning Request (Portion of Parcel 82774)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP9896.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPE787.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Blueberry Subdivision – Preliminary Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPAB25.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	Sutton Capital - Rezoning Map V2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SITE


	ADPC2D8.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Urban Neighborhood - General Character:
	Land Use – 5.2 Encourage open space and amenities in new development:
	Economic Development – 3.1 Support rezonings to residential uses in the Suburban Residential and Urban Neighborhood areas identified on the future land use map.
	Economic Development – Policy 5 – Promote retirement-focused living:
	Infrastructure and Mobility – 1.5 Coordinate with NCDOT and private development to upgrade four-way stop intersections with traffic lights and/or turn lanes as needed.
	Infrastructure and Mobility – 2.4 Require sidewalks in new developments.
	Parks and Natural Resources – 5.6 Obtain greenway easements wherever possible, including in sewer and public utility corridors; a minimum easement width of 30 feet wide wherever shown on the greenway master plan.
	Parks and Natural Resources – Policy 6: Encourage quality open space.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPE966.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sutton Capital Group – Rezoning Request (Parcels 12045, 23479, 38386)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP1176.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: WLH Development – Rezoning Request (Parcel 77831)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP10C.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP482F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Brookstone, Phase 2 – Preliminary Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP54F3.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Carroll Crossing, Section 3, Phase 1 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA828.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Section 3 – Rezoning Request 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	2021_12_28 villa grande 3 rezoning map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Site


	ADPCD8F.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP5D29.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Forbes Property – Rezoning Request (Parcel 10614)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP8DB0.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP99E4.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase 3 – Preliminary Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP1A5A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase 3 – Preliminary Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6534.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: McLawhorn Tract – Rezoning Request (Parcel 16207)
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	2022_04_01_Mclawhorn Tract Rezoning Draft.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PlanTemplate


	ADP755F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Villa Grande, Phase 3 – Preliminary Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6BB4.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Eleven at Main, Phase 1 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP4E4B.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Urban Neighborhood - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP244F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Wintergreen Commons Sports Complex – Preliminary Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD750.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Copper Creek, Section 2 – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP1E12.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Evans/Brewer Tract – Rezoning Request 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPB2D3.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPA028.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Rezoning Request – Parcels 67224, 68790, 70655
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD4B2.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Commercial Overlay - General Character:
	Economic Development – Policy 2:  Improve self-sufficiency and reduce retail leakage:
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP2B90.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Sunshine Lane – Final Plat
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	SUNSHINE LANE-Final Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	ADP4F13.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Southbrook PUD – Rezoning Request 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	Staff Report - Southbrook PUD Rezoning.pdf
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when considering land use decisions.
	 Identified as Suburban Residential Character Area.
	Strategy 1.3:  Encourage a logical progression of development and extension of utilities and discourage leap-frog development.
	 The proposed development is located adjacent to existing subdivisions and would not be considered a leap-frog development.
	Policy 5:  Maintain and improve neighborhood character:
	Strategy 5.2:  Encourage open space and amenities in new development.
	 The proposed development would provide ample open space and community amenities.
	(Economic Development) Policy 3:  Reinforce the Town’s identity as a family-friendly community.
	Strategy 3.1:  Support rezonings to residential used in the Suburban Residential areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.
	 Property identified as Suburban Residential Character Area.
	(Infrastructure & Mobility) Policy 2:  Coordinate connectivity, street and sidewalk standards.
	Strategy 2.2:  Require or incentivize the connection of stub streets to adjacent properties to allow for future connection of local or collector streets.
	 Per the site development plan, the proposed development will provide seven (7) stub streets for future connection with adjacent properties, in addition to connecting with three (3) existing stub streets in Holly Grove and Melon Downs.
	Strategy 2.4:  Require sidewalks in new developments.
	 The proposed street section will include sidewalks and street trees.
	(Parks & Natural Resources) Policy 6:  Encourage quality open space.
	Conservation subdivision design that includes open space and amenities should be encouraged in Suburban Residential areas.
	 The requested PUD design does just that, it will be a Conservation Subdivision Design that will focus on preserving the areas of environmental concern in permanent open space and provide quality open space areas and amenities within the community.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP695B.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Gray Point Motors – Rezoning Request 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7CE1.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Mixed Use Center - General Character:
	(Downtown) Policy 1:  Live/work/play downtown:
	Strategy 1.1:  Allow people to live near downtown Winterville, by encouraging and allowing more dense residential development within walking distance to downtown.
	 The Small Area Study included in the Comprehensive Land Use Plan shows this property as ideal for residential infill.
	Strategy 1.3:  Expand office and commercial uses on the edges of downtown where there is limited conflict with established residential areas.
	 The Land Use Plan shows the ideal area for commercial development within the downtown area is along Main Street.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP125F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Subdivision Ordinance Amendments
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP953.tmp
	Section 154.02 Authority
	Section 154.13 Approval Authority
	Board
	Section 154.16 Plat Submittal and Review Periods – Final Plats
	Section 154.21 Connectivity and Appropriateness to Adjoining Property and Land Uses
	Section 154.50 Duration of Financial Guarantees
	Section 154.51 Default
	Section 154.52 Release of Guarantee Security
	Section 154.53 Warranty Against Defects
	** Per UNC School of Government (Adam Lovelady):  “Local governments are not limited to performance guarantees.  Other enforcement tools are also available to ensure compliance with subdivision requirements.  One option is to say no—to refuse final pl...
	https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2014/02/subdivision-performance-guarantees/
	“To be clear, local ordinances may allow for performance guarantees, but local governments are not required to allow performance guarantees. The statutory standards and requirements apply if the local government chooses to allow for performance guaran...
	https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2015/09/subdivision-performance-guarantees-legislative-changes/
	Given the market and challenges of cash flow, David (developer) needs to complete the development in phases. The local ordinance could require David (developer) to complete all improvement before a final plat is approved. The ordinance also could allo...
	https://canons.sog.unc.edu/2015/05/subdivision-performance-guarantees-a-little-more-clarity/

	Section 154.59 Amendment
	A. NUMBER AND TYPE OF MAP TO BE SUBMITTED
	*Certificate no longer required by Register of Deeds



	ADPCDCB.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Rezoning Request – Waterford Crossing
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	02 - C-1007 - Waterford Crossing Rezoning Map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Rezoning Map


	ADPD484.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Urban Neighborhood - General Character:
	(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when considering land use decisions.
	 Identified as Urban Neighborhood Character Area.
	(Land Use) Policy 6:  Support higher density housing options in strategic locations.
	Strategy 6.1:  Encourage housing options in locations within walking distance to of commercial and mixed-use areas.
	 Property is located in close proximity to downtown and commercial properties along Beacon Drive.
	(Economic Development) Policy 3:  Reinforce the Town’s identity as a family-friendly community.
	Strategy 3.1:  Support rezonings to residential used in the Urban Neighborhood areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.
	 Property identified as Urban Neighborhood Character Area.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPC4EF.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Reedy Branch Farms Preliminary Plat. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD8B3.tmp
	Subdivision Ordinance Excerpts for Reedy Branch Farms Preliminary Plat:
	Section 154.21 Connectivity and Appropriateness to Adjoining Property and Land Uses
	Section 154.24 Restriction of Access

	ADP8E3D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Reedy Branch Farms Preliminary Plat. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF555.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Planning & Zoning Meeting Time Discussion
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3406.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: June Meeting Date Discussion. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPC9A2.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Urban Neighborhood Character Area -
	Comprehensive Plan Strategies:  Policy 1:  Economic Development
	Policy 3, Reinforce the Town’s Identity as a family-friendly community.
	 Strategy 3.1 Support rezonings to residential uses in the Suburban Residential and Urban Residential areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPA062.tmp
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	* Blueberry’s Preliminary Plat was originally submitted to the Town of Winterville in 2021 and was denied by the Winterville Town Council (4-1) at their November 8, 2021 meeting due to Town Council’s concerns about Park Road being unpaved, to request ...
	* The proposed subdivision fronts Park Road, an adjoining and unpaved NCDOT maintained street segment that does not meet the minimum standards of Winterville’s Subdivision Ordinance or Winterville’s Standard Specifications and Details.
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPF248.tmp
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Blueberry’s Preliminary Plat was originally submitted to the Town of Winterville in 2021 and was denied by the Winterville Town Council (4-1) at their November 8, 2021 meeting due to Town Council’s concerns about Park Road being unpaved, to request a ...
	After Town Attorney review of NC General Statute and relevant North Carolina Court of Appeal Cases, the Town of Winterville may not require the pavement of Park Road as a requirement to approve this development.
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP1C1D.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Regional Center:
	(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when considering land use decisions.
	Strategy1.2: Encourage non-residential growth in the form of retail restaurants, professional offices and industrial development in areas designated as such on the Future Land Use Map.
	(Economic Development) Policy 1:  Continue to Implement Previous Plans.
	Strategy 1.3:  Emphasize retail, office, light industrial and other commercial development especially along Winterville Parkway and other appropriate areas.
	(Economic Development) Policy 2:  Improve Self-Sufficiency and Reduce Retail Leakage.
	Strategy 2.1:  Support Winterville’s transformation from a bedroom community into a neighboring community of Greenville.
	Strategy 2.2:  Discourage rezonings to residential zoning districts in high visibility corners with good access and parcels within Office & Employment Future Land use areas.
	(Economic Development) Policy 6:  Focus on business recruitment, expansion and retention.
	Strategy 6.2:  Encourage and support local businesses, especially in expansion efforts.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	Southbrook Approved Preliminary Plat 2.8.24.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	Sheets and Views
	Model

	Sheets and Views
	Model


	ADP9A16.tmp
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP91BD.tmp
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADPDFF1.tmp
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis

	ADPBE6.tmp
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP3E67.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when considering land use decisions.
	 Identified as Suburban Residential Character Area.
	Strategy 1.3:  Encourage a logical progression of development and extension of utilities and discourage leap-frog development.
	 The proposed development is located adjacent to existing subdivisions and would not be considered a leap-frog development.
	Policy 5:  Maintain and improve neighborhood character:
	Strategy 5.2:  Encourage open space and amenities in new development.
	 The proposed development would provide ample open space and community amenities.
	(Economic Development) Policy 3:  Reinforce the Town’s identity as a family-friendly community.
	Strategy 3.1:  Support rezonings to residential used in the Suburban Residential areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.
	 Property identified as Suburban Residential Character Area.
	(Infrastructure & Mobility) Policy 2:  Coordinate connectivity, street and sidewalk standards.
	Strategy 2.2:  Require or incentivize the connection of stub streets to adjacent properties to allow for future connection of local or collector streets.
	 Per the site development plan, the proposed development will provide seven (7) stub streets for future connection with adjacent properties, in addition to connecting with three (3) existing stub streets in Holly Grove and Melon Downs.
	Strategy 2.4:  Require sidewalks in new developments.
	 The proposed street section will include sidewalks and street trees.
	(Parks & Natural Resources) Policy 6:  Encourage quality open space.
	Conservation subdivision design that includes open space and amenities should be encouraged in Suburban Residential areas.
	 The requested PUD design does just that, it will be a Conservation Subdivision Design that will focus on preserving the areas of environmental concern in permanent open space and provide quality open space areas and amenities within the community.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP9861.tmp
	Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
	Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation
	Suburban Residential - General Character:
	(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing growth:
	Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when considering land use decisions.
	 Identified as Suburban Residential Character Area.
	Strategy 1.3:  Encourage a logical progression of development and extension of utilities and discourage leap-frog development.
	 The proposed development is located adjacent to existing subdivisions and would not be considered a leap-frog development.
	Policy 5:  Maintain and improve neighborhood character:
	Strategy 5.2:  Encourage open space and amenities in new development.
	 The proposed development would provide ample open space and community amenities.
	(Economic Development) Policy 3:  Reinforce the Town’s identity as a family-friendly community.
	Strategy 3.1:  Support rezonings to residential used in the Suburban Residential areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.
	 Property identified as Suburban Residential Character Area.
	(Infrastructure & Mobility) Policy 2:  Coordinate connectivity, street and sidewalk standards.
	Strategy 2.2:  Require or incentivize the connection of stub streets to adjacent properties to allow for future connection of local or collector streets.
	 Per the site development plan, the proposed development will provide seven (7) stub streets for future connection with adjacent properties, in addition to connecting with three (3) existing stub streets in Holly Grove and Melon Downs.
	Strategy 2.4:  Require sidewalks in new developments.
	 The proposed street section will include sidewalks and street trees.
	(Parks & Natural Resources) Policy 6:  Encourage quality open space.
	Conservation subdivision design that includes open space and amenities should be encouraged in Suburban Residential areas.
	 The requested PUD design does just that, it will be a Conservation Subdivision Design that will focus on preserving the areas of environmental concern in permanent open space and provide quality open space areas and amenities within the community.
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	Staff Recommendation

	ADP2395.tmp
	STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION
	Staff Analysis
	The Proposed Southbrook Phase 2 Preliminary Plat does not meet the standards of the Town or the Southbrook Development Plan as outlined within Ordinance 23-O-011.
	1. The "Block" created by Southbrook Drive, Trailside Lane, and Middlecrest Drive exceed the Town's Standard for Block size.
	a. Winterville's Subdivision Ordinance requires block lengths between 400' and 1,200'.
	b. Staff doesn't suggest that Town Council approve this "Modification" from the Subdivision Ordinance as it doesn’t create "equal or better performance".
	i.  Winterville's Comprehensive Plan would suggest that 800' block lengths should be the maximum block distance for "Suburban Residential" classified areas. Further supporting staff's recommendation to deny this proposal.  Please see Comprehensive Pla...
	2. Town has requested Middlecrest Drive to be looped and for the col-de-sac to be eliminated and believe this col-de-sac proper interconnectivity within their neighborhood. .
	a. Winterville's Subdivision Ordinance is intended to provide for orderly growth and development: for the coordination of transportation networks and utilities within proposed subdivisions with existing or planned streets and highways and with other p...
	i. The proposed subdivision contains a significant amount of col-de-sacs.  The Middlecrest Drive Col-De-Sac can easily be realigned in order to remove this dead-end street.
	ii. The Town of Winterville wants to avoid inheriting col-de-sacs and deadend streets as much as possible.
	b. Winterville has reviewed each Col-De-Sac within the proposed subdivision and have significant concerns with the amount of col-de-sacs in the subdivision and the lack of interconnectivity for residents within the Col-De-Sac.  Some of the proposed Co...
	c.  Winterville's Ordinances, policies, and plans discourage unnecessary col-de-sacs.
	i.  Subdivision Ordinance154.21 #3. " Connection to Adjoining Property- Proposed streets shall be extended to the boundary of the subdivision for connection to existing streets on the boundary of adjoining property or for future connection. Cul-de-sac...
	d. Winterville's Comprehensive Plan:
	i.  Infrastructure and Mobility: Policy 2 recommends that the town "Discourage cul-de-sacs and dead end streets wherever possible. An overabundance of sudations using cul-de-sacs can cause additional delay and hinder emergency access."
	ii. Additional Image and Text within the Comprehensive Land Use Plan regarding Col-de-Sacs:
	3. Middlecrest Drive is outside of the "Single Family Attached" Zoning Map.
	a. P Southbrook Dev Standards state "Should the developer want to make changes to the Development Plan, The Planning Director can approve specific minor revisions or changes that represent less intensive uses. An example of one such modification is ch...
	i.  The "Middlecrest Drive" townhomes represent a higher density at this location however the overall number of Townhomes will not increase throughout the development.
	b. Will not increase the number of Single Family Attached Units- just the location.
	c. Staff doesn't see any issues with relocating a portion of the Single Family Attached as a modification equal or better performance in the eyes of Town Council.
	d. Staff suggests the removal of the a col-de-sac, in this location and to provide adequate interconnectivity. Staff recommends that the developer needs to revisit this design to create more efficient interconnectivity, and utility design.
	Staff Recommendation




